
301 East Belt Boulevard • Richmond, VA  23224 

MEETING 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

GRTC Transit System 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the GRTC Transit System, Old Dominion 
Transit Management Company (ODTMC), and RideFinders will be held concurrently at 8:00 
a.m. on November 15, 2022, at GRTC Transit System, 301 East Belt Boulevard, Operator’s
Lounge, Richmond, Virginia. Video and audio of the meeting will be streamed live online and
recorded for later viewing at the following web address:  https://youtu.be/aq5WhZ0nzEQ.
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I. Call to Order & Introductions

II. Public Comments – Mike Frontiero

III. Approval of October 25, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes – Tyrone Nelson

IV. Consent Agenda – Tyrone Nelson
A. General Planning Consulting (GPC) Services – Sam Sink
B. Essential Transit Infrastructure Manufacturing – Sam Sink

V. Information Items
A. Updated List of Recent and Upcoming Procurements – Tonya Thompson
B. January Service Changes – Sam Sink

VI. Staff Reports
A. Safety Report – Tony Carter
B. Service Report and Operator Staffing – Tim Barham
C. Vehicle/Facility Report and Maintenance Staffing – Tony Byrd
D. Ridership Report – Sam Sink
E. Rider Comments – Monica Carter
F. Financial Report – John Zinzarella

VII. Board Committee Reports
A. Personnel Search Committee Report – Tyrone Nelson

• Update on CEO Search (Closed Session)
B. Finance Committee Report – Committee Chair

• RideFinders Financial Audit – Leslie Roberts of Brown, Edwards & Company
o RideFinders Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2022
o Report to the Board of Directors – RideFinders Financial Audit

• GRTC Financial Audit – Leslie Roberts of Brown, Edwards & Company
o GRTC Financial Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2022
o Report to the Board of Directors – GRTC Financial Audit
o Audit Report on Agreed Upon Procedures (AUP) – NTD Submission

VIII. Interim Chief Executive Officer’s Report – Sheryl Adams

https://youtu.be/aq5WhZ0nzEQ
JWitt
Cross-Out
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IX. Board Chair’s Report

X. Other Business

XI. Adjourn – Photos of Board Members for Website and Tour of Maintenance Facility

2



MINUTES 
OCTOBER 25, 2022 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
GRTC TRANSIT COMPANY 

 
Members Present: Eldridge Coles, Chair, Nominating Committee, City of Richmond 
 Tyrone E. Nelson, Chair, County of Henrico 
 Andreas Addison, Vice Chair, City of Richmond 
 Barb Smith, Secretary/Treasurer, County of Chesterfield 
 Dave Anderson, County of Chesterfield 
 Todd Eure, County of Henrico 
 Jim Ingle, County of Chesterfield 
 Ellen Robertson, City of Richmond 
 Lincoln Saunders, City of Richmond 
 Daniel Schmitt, County of Henrico 
  
Others Present: Bonnie Ashley, General Counsel  
 Sheryl Adams, Interim Chief Executive Officer 
 Adrienne Torres, Chief Development Officer 
 John Zinzarella, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer  
 Tim Barham, Chief of Transit Operations 
 Tony Byrd, Director of Maintenance 
 Anthony Carter, Director of Risk Management 
 Joe Dillard, Director of Equitable Innovation & Legislative Policy  
 Mike Frontiero, Director of Communications 
 Dexter Hurt, Director of Information Systems 
 Sam Sink, Director of Planning & Schedules 
 Tonya Thompson, Director of Procurement 
 Von Tisdale, Executive Director of RideFinders 
 Brandon, Butler, Procurement Specialist 
 Monica Carter, Safety and Service Compliance Manager 
 Jamel Harper, Procurement Specialist 
 Jean Lombos, ITS Project Implementation Manager 
 Ashley Mason, Manager of Organization Advancement 
 McGregor Sheppard, Capital Improvement Program Manager 
 Marquis Taylor, Planning and Scheduling Department 
 Janice Witt, Executive Assistant 
 Maurice Carter, President – Local 1220, Amalgamated Transit Union 
 Dironna Clarke, City of Richmond 
 Lyndon German, Richmond Times Dispatch 
 Amy Guzulaitis, Partnership for Smart Growth 
 Richard Hankins, RVA Rapid Transit 
 Ken Lantz, PlanRVA 
 Dan Motta, PlanRVA 
 Jonathan Rigby, Transit Rider 
 Faith Walker, RVA Rapid Transit 
  

I. Call to Order & Introductions 
  
This meeting of the Board of Directors of the GRTC Transit System, Old Dominion Transit 
Management Company (ODTMC), and RideFinders was called to order on October 25, 2022, by 
Eldridge Coles at 8:00AM.  The meeting was held at GRTC Transit System, Operators Lounge, 301 
East Belt Boulevard, Richmond, Virginia. Video and audio of the meeting will be streamed live online 
and recorded for later viewing at the following web address:  https://youtu.be/ODJzW7v-mDQ. 
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II. GRTC Board of Directors 
A. Annual Shareholders Meeting Report / Board Membership 
The Shareholders met on October 19, 2022, at 8AM; nominations were submitted and approved. 

 
III. Public Comments 

 
The public notice, meeting agenda, and agenda attachments for this October 25, 2022, standing 
meeting of the Boards of GRTC, RideFinders, and Old Dominion Transit Management Company were 
posted at rideGRTC.com.  Per the meeting notice, all written comments received via email by Mike 
Frontiero prior to 5:00PM on the day preceding a meeting were provided to all members of the Board 
the night before the meeting, are read during the Public Comment Period of the meeting by staff 
following the two-minute speaking limit and will be included in the minutes of the meeting.  
 
Sarah Kirchner 
I support the North-South GRTC line because it will improve the job options for our low-income 
residents. In order to take care of yourself and your family, a job is important. Without reliable 
transportation, finding a job that pays enough to do so is almost impossible.  
  
Ilya Yablochnikov 
I live in the DC area. Though I am no longer a resident of Richmond, I work for a company based in 
the Richmond area. I would like to support the plan to open a BRT line along Midlothian Turnpike. My 
company's office is located in the Boulders Office Park along with several other offices. When I visit 
the office, I take the #1A bus from Downtown and the bus is always full. I believe a BRT line along 
that route would attract even more riders, just like the success of the Pulse bus. In the same area, 
along Midlothian Turnpike, are the Kroger and New Grand Mart supermarkets and numerous 
restaurants and businesses. There are no supermarkets in Richmond's Southside so running a 
frequent and quick bus service along Midlothian Turnpike would make Southside's residents lives 
much easier. It would also provide access to jobs. With car prices at an all-time high, giving 
Richmonders the option to take convenient public transit instead of paying another monthly car 
payment would improve their economic well-being, make them healthier, decrease traffic and reduce 
climate-change-causing emissions. With the nation-wide press that the Pulse received, another BRT 
line would bring more attention and prestige to the Richmond Metro Area. 
  
Ian Young 
I am a resident of the fan in Richmond. I am here today to support the North-South BRT. Last year 
when I got a new job on May Will Street, I was relieved knowing it was within walking distance from 
the Staples Mill Station. In addition, the fact that I could go back and forth from my neighborhood to 
work was beneficial for other residents who regularly ride as well as me. I support the North-South 
BRT because it would increase access to jobs like the East-West BRT has done. 
  
George Sinkler 
I am a resident of Richmond. I am in support of a North-South BRT line because it will give me and 
many more like me more opportunity to go places that I couldn’t go because of lack of transit 
service. The necessity of life travel for health issues, personal services, and expenses for personal 
reasons and businesses will be greater beneficiaries for transit riders of everyday users. Our lifestyle 
will improve greatly. Thank you for your time and consideration. 
  
Chaya Braxton 
I am a resident of Southside Richmond. I also am a Transit Advocate with Rapid RVA Transit. I am 
here today to support the proposed construction of Richmond Highway BRT and on behalf of fellow 
Richmond citizens who take the bus every day. Before moving to Richmond in 2002, I frequented the 
Metropolitan Transit Authority in New York City. I used a similar rapid transit system to travel back and 
forth to a school that would have been out of my reach if I did not have adequate transportation. As a 
result of attending that school, I was hired for better-paying internships and had the freedom to travel 
back and forth at an affordable rate. The money I earned from that job was used to pay for books, buy 
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clothes for my siblings and help my mom with bills. I am excited about the Richmond BRT coming to 
this region to provide other young people with the same opportunities. The time to build the Richmond 
BRT is now.  
  
Brenda Phipps 
I have been a resident of the Church Hill area for over 20 years. I am writing in support of a North-
South BRT. Currently, I work at a preschool in the Southside of Richmond as a Teacher's Assistant. A 
student in my class is late to school every day. Unfortunately, my student's mother has to take three 
buses to take two children to two schools [in opposite directions. I believe a North-South BRT will 
reduce travel time for some parents with children at my school. 
  
Richard Hankins  
Hello GRTC Board, my name is Richard Hankins, and I am a resident of the Westover Hills 
neighborhood in Southside Richmond and a transit advocate with RVA Rapid Transit. I am here to 
speak today about the North-South BRT. I am in full support of a North-South BRT with frequent 
service, dedicated lanes, and sheltered stations. I have always believed that transit is a pillar of an 
economically resilient & flourishing region, as each dollar spent on transit brings $5 in economic 
benefits.  Also, 48% of carbon emissions in Virginia comes from transportation. As riding the bus 
reduces emissions compared to driving your own vehicle, it not only mitigates the impact of climate 
change, but also decreased gasoline consumption reduces our dependence on foreign oil supplied by 
dangerous and often corrupt petrostates. There is also an equity component: 90% of those on public 
assistance do not own a car. Many elderly folks and those with disabilities also cannot drive - these 
people a second BRT could double their accessible world. Finally, at this stage, I think several 
southbound corridors should be studied, including Midlothian Turnpike, Hull Street, and Richmond 
Highway.  But I don’t want disagreements over corridors to impede such a transformational project for 
Greater Richmond. 
  
Faith Walker 
Good morning, my name is Faith Walker I am a resident of Henrico County and Executive Director for 
RVA Rapid Transit. RVA Rapid Transit is a non-profit dedicated to advocate and educate for frequent 
and far-reaching public transportation in the Richmond region.  First, I would like to congratulate and 
welcome all new GRTC Board members I’m so grateful to see two females appointed to the Board. 
Females represent over half of the ridership in this region, it is wonderful for the company shift to 
represent and reflect who is using public transportation.  On behalf of RVA Rapid Transit, I also want 
to express our strong support for GRTC to explore a North-South BRT. Over the last two years, I have 
been engaging bus riders who desperately want and need access to jobs inside Richmond. Putting a 
BRT line through any of these corridors would increase access to jobs; for example, on Hull Street 
currently 4,200 jobs within a half-mile of this route, on Midlothian Boulevard currently 6,400 jobs within 
a half-mile of this route, and on Route One currently 5,900 jobs within a half-mile of this route. The 
number of jobs accessible within an hour-long unusual ride to share considerably with the 
combination of the East-West pulse in the North-South BRT. Thank you so much for working 
collaboratively to move this project without delay. Thank you. 
 
Amy Guzulaitis 
Good morning, members of the Board, my name is Amy Guzulaitis representing Partnership for 
Smarter Growth. Before you today is an important step forward for equity in our transportation system.  
The addition of the North-South Bus Rapid Transit line to GRTC’s routes will have a huge, immediate 
impact for people that currently use the system, as well as encouraging new riders to use it.  It would 
improve access to jobs and opportunity, providing dedicated lanes that will allow for fast, frequent, 
and reliable service. The Partnership for Smarter Growth, along with the community, have repeatedly 
advocated for a strong regional transit system, and one of the key connections is the north/south 
corridor.  It would connect City residents to suburban jobs and suburban residents to City jobs and 
would serve a number of areas with lower income residents who need better transit.  Combined with 
updated parking policies and parking pricing in the City, it would provide an alternative to driving and 
help to reduce average vehicle miles traveled and lower greenhouse gas emissions in our region.   
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The best way for our region to grow is through walkable, transit-oriented communities tied to frequent, 
reliable transit.  We urge you to approve the North-South BRT Corridor. 
 
Jonathan Rigby 
Good morning, my name is Jonathan Rigby.  I’m a resident of Chesterfield County, frequent bus rider,  
Faith Outreach Coordinator for Virginia Interfaith, non-profit and transit justice. I am in support of 
expanding the BRT line; having more individuals using public transit means fewer carbon emissions, 
48% which from the Commonwealth from the transportation sector in and around Richmond primarily 
impact those brown and black communities. As a transit rider, I have experienced the dignity that 
comes with waiting in a sheltered covered bus stop knowing that I can get to West BRT line in 15 
minutes has increased my usage of that bus line and also I would like to share a brief story of my last 
experience riding the 77-bus line. I arrived on the Grove and Belmont about 15 minutes before the 
bus was scheduled to arrive and there's no shelter or bench at that stop. So, I thought I would walk in 
the direction I was going to be going to get a bench to sit on, and of the five stops I passed before I 
reached my line not a single one had a bench, not a single one had a shelter, so I ended up standing 
at the corner waiting for the bus there. There really is dignity difference when you’re waiting at a bus 
stop with a shelter, so I really do encourage you all and thank you all for considering this North-South 
BRT Line. 
 
Maurice Carter 
Good morning everyone, my name is Maurice Carter, President of Local 1220, at GRTC. I would like 
to welcome the new Board of Directors to GRTC.  Ever since September, the Union and Company 
have been working together to bring GRTC efforts back to the way it was when I first started. When 
looking for a new CEO, I would like your consideration in bringing somebody in here that would keep 
our family atmosphere like when I first started.  Thank you. 
 
B. Nominations and Elections of Board Officers 
Mr. Coles moved that the following officers be elected for the coming year October 2022 – October 
2023; Tyrone Nelson, Chair; Andreas Addison, Vice Chair; and Barb Smith, Secretary/Treasurer, the 
motion was seconded, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

IV. Approval of September 20, 2022 Board Meeting Minutes  
Mr. Eure motioned to approve the September 20, 2022 Board Meeting minutes, Mr. Saunders 
seconded, and the motion carried unanimously. 
   

V. Consent Agenda  
A. BRT Station Communication Switches/Network Equipment 
B. Vehicle Lifts 
C. Architectural & Engineering (A&E) Services 
D. North-South BRT Study 
E. Transit Ridership Incentive Program (TRIP) Grant Application for Micro Transit 
Mr. Saunders motioned to approve the Consent Agenda, Mr. Ingle seconded, and the motion 
carried unanimously.   
 

VI. Information Items 
A. Updated List of Recent and Upcoming Procurements  
B. Richmond Chapter Public Relations Society of America Awards 
C. Downtown Transfer Station Update 
 

VII. Staff Reports 
Staff discussed the Reports provided in the Board Packet as follows with no significant changes 
from the prior month to report and no new significant issues pending: 
A. Safety Performance – Tony Carter 
B. Service Report and Operator Staffing – Tim Barham 
C. Vehicle/Facility Report and Maintenance Staffing – Tony Byrd 
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D. Ridership Report – Sam Sink 
E. Quarterly Report – Sam Sink 
F. Rider Comments – Monica Carter 
G. Financial Report – John Zinzarella 
 

VIII. Interim Chief Executive Officer’s Report – Sheryl Adams 
No report. 
 

IX. Board Chair’s Report – Tyrone Nelson 

• Personnel Search Update – Christian Kent with KL2 is the Consultant assigned to help with the 
CEO Search.  Started Advertising for the CEO position last month and have received 20+ 
applications and the Consultant has a list of five/six that he is recommending.  The Personnel 
Search Committee will meet on November 7.  The entire list of candidates will be sent out prior to 
the meeting. 

• Due to long Board meetings, the Board decided it would be beneficial to have Board Committees. 
Recommendations have been made for serving on the Committees which are Finance, 
Operations, Development, and Personnel (temporary).  Please review and decide if these 
recommendations will move forward. 

 
X. Other Business 

A. Resolution Honoring Eldridge Coles GRTC Board 
B. Resolution Honoring Daniel Smith GRTC Board 
C. Resolution Honoring Gary Armstrong GRTC Board 
D. Resolution Honoring Ben Campbell GRTC Board 
Mr. Ingle motioned to accept the four Resolutions, Mr. Schmitt seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

XI. Adjourn 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:30AM  
 
 APPROVED: 
 
 
       
 Tyrone E. Nelson, Chair 
 GRTC Board of Directors 
 
 
 
       
 Date  
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GRTC Transit System 
Consent Agenda  

 
 
Meeting Date: November 15, 2022 
 

           

 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 
• Approval of General Planning Consulting (GPC) Services 

• Approval of Essential Transit Infrastructure Manufacturing 
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GRTC Transit System 
Consent Agenda 

 
 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2022 
Item Title: General Planning Consulting (GPC) Services 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Over the next five years, GRTC staff foresees the need for significant planning assistance to 
support existing and expanded transit and mobility services in the RVA region. Upcoming 
projects over the next five years may include preparing the agency’s first Transit Strategic Plan, 
implementation planning for microtransit, studies to enhance transfer locations, updating the 
Regional Public Transportation Plan, and BRT extension studies. In anticipation of these and 
other projects, GRTC requested qualifications from experienced firms to provide General 
Planning Consulting (GPC) on-call services to potentially include the initiatives listed above or 
others as identified by GRTC during the contract period. Through this contract, the selected firm 
will provide the required GPC services to GRTC through individual Task Orders on a full or part 
time basis dependent on the needs of the agency. Services include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Capital Improvement Plan 

• State required ten-year Transit 
Strategic Plan and annual updates 

• Automatic Passenger Counter 
validation per the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA)/National 
Transit Database (NTD) guidelines 

• Grant applications and grant writing 
assistance 

• Project Management assistance 

• Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) Planning services 

• Public Outreach services 

• Financial planning 

• Title VI support services 

• Service Evaluation support services 

• Fare Evaluation 

• Environmental analysis in 
compliance with the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 
regulations 

• Long Range Planning support 
services 

• FTA Capital Investment Grant 
planning services 

• DRPT Smart Scale grant planning 
services 

• Sate of Good Repair/Asset 
Management analyses 

• Ridership forecasting services 

• Establishment/monitoring of service 
standards 

• General route planning and route 
scheduling 

• Multimodal planning and evaluation 
(e.g., bikes, e-scooters, and 
emerging technologies) 

• Historic resources assessment  

• Automated Bus planning services 

• Comprehensive, long-range, and 
local plan integration support with 
member jurisdictions 
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HIGHLIGHTS:  
 

• GRTC received and evaluated offers from three (3) firms. The selection committee rated 
the Foursquare ITP submittal as the most responsive to the request for qualifications 
and the needs of GRTC. 

• Foursquare’s methodology and the quality of the work plan proposed to meet project 
objectives, demonstrated relevant work experiences and capabilities of project personnel 
on projects of similar sizes, scope, and complexity. By exhibiting that it and its 
subconsultants have the existing in-house qualified key persons assigned to 
successfully perform the services required in this contract, Foursquare was selected as 
the most qualified. 

• Term: Contract shall be three (3) years from the Contract notice to proceed. Option to 
extend contract for up to two (2) option periods for a twelve (12) month duration 

• As items under consideration are developed the funding sources will be identified, and 
GRTC will request Board approvals when and as required based on GRTC procurement 
thresholds. 

• This indefinite quantity, indefinite delivery Contract is subject to the following: 
o Minimum order: GRTC will order a minimum of $10,000 in services under this 

contract over the total five-year term. 
o Maximum order: GRTC will order a maximum not to exceed $3,000,000 under 

this contract over the total five-year term. 
o There is no limit to the number of task orders that may be placed under this 

Contract 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorizes the CEO to contract with Foursquare 
ITP for on-call General Planning Consultant services over a term not to exceed five years at a 
total value not to exceed $3,000,000. 
 
 
 
              
Barb Smith, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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GRTC Transit System 
Consent Agenda 

 
Meeting Date: November 15, 2022 
Item Title: Essential Transit Infrastructure Manufacturing 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
With the recent adoption of the Essential Transit Infrastructure Plan, GRTC will need to purchase new 
benches, bus shelters, and trash cans to increase the number of bus stops that have essential transit 
infrastructure throughout the Richmond region. In anticipation of these infrastructure needs, GRTC 
issued an invitation for bid for firms to manufacture benches, shelters, and trash cans to specifications 
identified by GRTC during the five-year contract period. Through this contract, the selected firms will 
provide the required infrastructure to GRTC through individual Task Orders dependent on the needs of 
the agency.

 

HIGHLIGHTS:  
 

• GRTC received and evaluated bids from three (3) firms. One of these bids was determined to be 
nonresponsive. The lowest responsive and responsible bidder for benches and trash cans was Victor 
Stanley. The lowest responsive and responsible bidder for shelters was Brasco. 

• Term: Contract shall be three (3) years from the Contract notice to proceed. Option to extend 
contract for up to two (2) option periods for a twelve (12) month duration 

• As bus stop installation sites are made ready for essential transit infrastructure installation, the 
funding sources will be identified, and GRTC will request Board approvals when and as required 
based on GRTC procurement thresholds. 

• This indefinite quantity, indefinite delivery Contract is subject to the following: 
o Minimum order: GRTC will order a minimum of $10,000 in services under this contract over the 

total five-year term. 
o Maximum order: GRTC will order a maximum not to exceed $5,000,000 under this contract over 

the total five-year term. 
o There is no limit to the number of task orders that may be placed under this Contract 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:   
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorizes the Interim CEO to contract with Victor Stanley 
and Brasco for essential transit infrastructure manufacturing over a term not to exceed five years at a 
total value not to exceed $5,000,000. 
 
 
 
              
Barb Smith, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Information Item 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 15, 2022 
Item Title: Recent and Upcoming Procurements 
 

 
              

BACKGROUND: 
 
The Board Chair is authorized to sign contracts on behalf of the full GRTC Board for 
contracts valued over $50,000 and under $100,000.  The Board chair is authorized to also 
sign emergency related contracts under the COVID pandemic under $250,000.  Any contract 
signed by the Board Chair shall be reported at the next full Board Meeting. 
 
The Procurement Department maintains a rolling list of upcoming procurement items 
anticipated for the coming year.  At least three months prior to initiation of the procurement 
process, staff will update the Board prior to releasing requests for proposals, quotes, 
invitations for bids, or other methods of procurement.  
 
The Recent and Upcoming Procurement report ensures full transparency in contracting. 
 
Tonya Thompson, Director of Procurement, will review and answer questions on the list of 
upcoming procurements as follows: 
 
 

CURRENT STATUS: 
 
Upcoming Procurements 

TITLE DEPT BUDGET 
ANTICIPATED 
AWARD DATE 

 
INCLUDED 
IN BUDGET 
(YES/NO) 

GRANT STATUS 
(EXISTING/ 
PENDING/ 
PLANNED) 

Roof Repairs Facilities $125,000 Winter 2022 
 

Y – FY22 
 

Pending 

Interior Painting Facilities $250,000 Winter 2022 
 

Y – FY21 
 

Pending 

 
Actuarial Services Finance TBD Winter 2022 

N – FY22 
Pension Plan 

Reimbursement 

 

Facilities Master Plan 
 

Planning 
 

$430,000 Winter 2023 
 

Y – FY22 
 

Existing 

Neighborhood 
Transfer Center 
Study Planning $180,000 Summer 2022 

 
 

Y – FY22 

 
 

Planned 

Data Network & 
Server Expansion 

Information 
Systems $115,000 Winter 2022 

 
Y- FY21 

 
Pending 
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CARE-ON-DEMAND 
and Overflow Service 
Providers Transportation  TBD Winter 2023 

  
 

Planned 

On-Call Marketing 
Services – 
Photography, 
Graphics, 
Videography, 
consulting, web 
design, etc.  Marketing TBD Winter 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TBD 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Planned 

Bus Wash Upgrades Facilities $162,000 Fall 2022 
 

Y- FY22 
 

Existing 

E-Sign Pilot Program  Technology $1,300,000 Winter 2023 
 

Y-FY23 
 

Pending  

Origin-Destination 
Survey 

 
Planning 

 
$290,000 

 
Winter 2022 

 
TBD 

 
Pending 

Engineering for 
Articulated Vehicle 
Station Modifications 

 
Planning 

 
$125,000 

 
Fall 2022 

 
Y 

 
Existing 

Transit Strategic Plan 
 

Planning 
 

$275,000 
 

Winter 2022 
 

Y 
 

Existing 

Bus Stop 
Infrastructure 

 
Planning 

 
TBD 

 
Fall 2022 

 
TBD 

 
Planned and Existing 

 
Security Assessment  

Risk 
Management 

/Safety 

 
 

$30,000 

 
 

Winter 2022 

 
 

Y- FY23 

 
 

Planned  

 
SHPO Letters 

 
Planning 

 
$46,000 

 
Fall 2022 

 
Y 

 
Existing 

Pole-Attached 
Seating Pilot 

 
Planning 

 
$3,000 

 
Fall 2022 

 
Y 

 
Existing 

Bus Stop 
Infrastructure 
Engineering 
Evaluation Services 

 
 
 

Planning 

 
 
 

TBD 

 
 
 

Fall 2022 

 
 
 

TBD 

 
 
 

Planned and Existing 

Landing Pad 
Construction 
Documentation 

 
 

Planning 

 
 

TBD 

 
 

Fall 2022 

 
 

TBD 

 
 

Existing 

Regional Public 
Transportation Plan  

 
Planning 

 
$200,000 

 
Fall 2022 

 
Y 

 
Ready 

Phase II Micro Transit 
Study 

 
Planning 

 
$200,000 

 
Fall 2022 

 
Y 

 
Ready 

Specialized 
Transportation 
Scheduling Software 

 
 

IT 

 
 

$375,000 

 
 

Fall 2022 

 
 

TBD 

 
 

Planned 

(21) Paratransit 
Vehicles 

 
Maintenance 

 
$3,675,000 

 
Winter 2022 

 
Y 

 
Planned 

(19) New Fixed Route 
Buses  

 
Maintenance 

 
$11,850,000 

 
Winter 2023 

 
Y 

 
Pending 

(7) Support Vehicles Maintenance $322,000 Winter 2022 Y Existing 

Flat Bed Wrecker Maintenance $252,000 Winter 2023 Y Existing 

(4) Tank Pumps Maintenance $20,000 Winter 2022 Y Existing 

Wheel Alignment 
Machine for 
Specialized 
Transportation 
Vehicles 

 
 
 
 

Maintenance 

 
 
 
 

$75,000 

 
 
 
 

Spring 2023 

 
 
 
 

Y 

 
 
 
 

Existing 
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Yard Sweeper Maintenance $45,000 Spring 2023 Y Existing 

Copier Lease IT $105,000 Winter 2022 Y  

Radio 
Communications 
Upgrade 

 
 

Technology 

 
 

$260,000 

 
 

Winter 2022 

 
 

Y 

 
 

Existing 

Servers IT $400,000 Winter 2022 Y Existing 

Vehicle Yard 
Management 
Infrastructure 

 
 

IT 

 
 

$200,000 

 
 

Spring 2023 

 
 

TBD 

 
 

Pending 

Giro – HASTUS 
Renewal 

 
IT 

 
$523,000 

 
Winter 2022 

 
Y 

 
Existing 

Western BRT Phase 
II 

 
Planning 

 
TBD 

 
Summer 2023 

 
N 

 
Planned 

Zero Emissions 
Vehicle Plan 

 
Planning 

 
TBD 

 
Winter 2023 

 
N 

 
Pending 

 
 

KEY 

Ready Project approved and funds are available.  

Existing Project approved and funds to be applied to federal grant.  

Pending  Awaiting approval of funds.  

Planned Project is in planning phase and funding to be applied for in future.  
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Information Item 

 
 

Meeting Date:  November 15, 2022 
Item Title:  January Service Changes 
 

              
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
The next schedule change for GRTC is set for January 29, 2023.  The new schedule 
includes the following: 
 

• Route 77 – Change from 40 minute to hourly service 

• Route 78- Change from 40 minute to hourly service 

• Routes 1/1A/1B/1C – Bifurcate at downtown to implement a trunk and legs 
structure 

• Route 29 – Time adjustments 

• Route 95 – simplification of Downtown Richmond loop 
 
 

UPDATES: 
 
Sam Sink, Director of Planning & Scheduling, will provide details of the service 
changes. 
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January 2023 Service Changes

November 15, 2022
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2

• Board Effective Date: January 29, 2023
• Routes 1/1A/1B/1C – Split at downtown to implement a trunk and 

legs structure
• Route 77 – Change from 45 minute to hourly service
• Route 78- Change from 45 minute to hourly service
• Route 29 – Time adjustments
• Route 95 – simplification of Downtown Richmond loop

Summary
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EXISTING
• Route 1 Sunday Only
• Weekdays A/B/C provide 

overlapping service with 15-
minute frequency 

CHANGE
• Route 1 operates daily w/15-

minute frequency 
Chamberlayne-Downtown

• Routes 1A/B/C operate daily 
w/overlapping 15-minute 
frequency Downtown-Southside

ROUTE 1 and 1A/B/C
Chamberlayne/Hull
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EXISTING
• 45-minute frequency 

CHANGE
• 60-minute frequency

ROUTE 77
Grove
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EXISTING
• 45-minute frequency 

CHANGE
• 60-minute frequency

ROUTE 78
Cary/Maymont
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EXISTING
• Westbound afternoon trips at 

4:05, 4:25, 5:05, and 5:35

CHANGE
• Westbound afternoon trips at 

4:05, 4:15, 5:05, and 5:35

ROUTE 29x
Gaskins Express
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EXISTING
• Southbound route begins at 

7th + Main

CHANGE
• Southbound route begins at 

14th + Bank

ROUTE 95x
Richmond / Petersburg Express
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GRTC Transit System 
Staff Report 

 
 

Meeting Date:  November 15, 2022  
Item Title:  Safety Performance 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
Tony Carter, Director of Risk Management, will provide an update on safety statistics for the 
month of October. 
 
 

CURRENT STATUS: 
 
Performance Indicator Agency Averages October (GRTC)  
Miles Between Total NTD Defined Events 11,540 11,488   
NTD Defined Event Rate Per 1,000,000 miles  3.5 3.3 
(Averages taken from other agencies with similar amount of annual VRM to GRTC)  
 
Passenger, Pedestrian, Bicycle Incidents  Bus-Related Care-Related 
Non-Preventable  9 2 

Passenger Incident  9 2 
Preventable 2 1 

Passenger Incident  2 1 
Pedestrian (reported)  0 0 
Bicycle (reported)  0 0 
 

Traffic Incidents Bus-Related Care-Related 
Non-Preventable 20                    0 

Vehicle Rear Ended Bus 4                    0 
Preventable 14                    1 

Fixed Objects (Tree Limbs, Street Signs) 8                    1 
Improper Turning 3                    0 
Bus Rear ended Vehicle  0                    0 
Bus hit Parked Vehicle  2                    0 
 

Assaults  Bus-Related Care-Related 
Verbal 2 0 
Physical 1 0 
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DEFINITIONS: 
 
Assault:  Any act of aggression, verbal or physical, towards an operator or rider which stops 
operations and in which supervision and/or police are involved in response.  
 
Bicycle Incident:  Bicycle comes into contact with the bus. 
 
Incident:  An event or occurrence of an accident or impact.  
 
National Transit Database (NTD) Defined Event:  Collision involving on a roadway transit 
vehicle where any (including private) vehicle is towed away or passenger or driver is transported 
from scene for medical attention.  
 
Non-Preventable Passenger Incident:  A passenger trip, slip or fall, while boarding, alighting or 
on board the bus related to normal operating environment and pathway clearances and 
unrelated to GRTC vehicle movement.  
 
Non-Preventable Traffic Incident:  A motor vehicle collision in which the Operator committed no 
driving error and reacted reasonably to the error of others.  
 
Passenger Incidents:  Any accident involving a passenger’s slip, trip or fall while boarding, 
alighting or on board the bus. 
 
Pedestrian Incident:  Pedestrian comes into contact with the bus. 
 
Physical Assault:  Any assault involving physical harm or unwanted physical contact towards an 
operator or between riders and in which supervision and /or police are requested/required to 
respond. 
     
Preventable Passenger Incident:  A passenger trip, slip or fall, while boarding, alighting or on 
board the bus related to normal operating environment and pathway clearances in which the 
Operator did not do everything reasonable to avoid a collision, committed an error, or failed to 
react to the errors of others.  
 
Preventable Traffic Incident:  A motor vehicle collision in which the Operator did not do 
everything reasonable to avoid a collision, committed an error, or failed to react to the errors of 
others.  
 
Verbal Assault:  Any assault involving a verbal exchange with harmful and/or   threatening 
content towards an operator or between riders and in which supervision and /or police are 
requested/required to respond.  
 
VRM/Vehicle Revenue Miles:  The number of miles traveled by transit vehicles in revenue 
service.  
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Fixed Route – Traffic Accident Data 

 

 

Fixed Route – Passenger Accident Data 
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Specialized Transportation – Traffic Accident Data 

 

 

Specialized Transportation – Passenger Accident Data 
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Fixed Route – Traffic Accidents per 100,000 Miles 

 

 

Fixed Route – Passenger Accidents per 100,000 Mile 
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GRTC Transit System 
Staff Report 

 
 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2022 
Item Title: Operating Performance 
 

 
 

HIGHLIGHTS: 
 

Attached are the monthly operating statistics through October 31, 2022. Current operator staffing is 
230 full-time/27 part-time operators with 19 operators in training. 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS: 
 

Fixed Route Performance – Lost Time Rate – Bus Operators 

 

Fixed Route Performance – Scheduled Trips Operated 
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Fixed Route Performance – On-Time Performance 

 

Specialized Transportation – No Shows 

 

 

Specialized Transportation – On-Time Performance 
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Specialized Transportation – Complaints Per 10,000 Passenger Trips 

 

 

Operators – Full Time Equivalents 

 

Operator Turnover Ratio – FY2023 
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Annual Operator Turnover Ratio 

 

September 2022 Booking – Operator Staffing 
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Operator Retention 

 

Operator Staffing 
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Other

Operator Exit Interview Summary

Positive Sentiment
Quality of training

Supervisor communication/support

Family atmosphere

Fun

Quality of training

Supervisor communication/support

Job didn’t meet expectations

Work/life balance

Listen to operator opinions more

Company communications

Morale/burnout

Career advancements, benefits,
incentives, pay, stability

Challenges with the public

Operator safety

Scheduling

Relocation (in or out of state)

Negative Sentiment

Between September 11, 2021 and October 25, 2022, 13 bus operators replied 
to GRTC’s exit survey at the end of their employment. We regret that not all 

employees opt to respond to our exit interview.

Range of years with GRTC: 5 months to 21 years
Median length of service: about 7 years

OUT OF 13 RESPONSES

2 4 6 8 10 12
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GRTC Transit System 
Staff Report 

 
 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2022  
Item Title: Maintenance Performance 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
Tony Byrd, Director of Maintenance will provide an update on maintenance statistics for 
the month of September. 

 
 
CURRENT STATUS: 
 
GRTC maintains a bus fleet of 142 vehicles for our fixed route service and 88 vans for 
our paratransit service. 
 

 
 
Preventive Maintenance for the month of October was 94% with a goal of 80%. 
 
Currently, 10% of the fleet is down for service repairs with a spare ratio of 20%.  We 
have a 15% contingency fleet.   
 
Current Staffing Levels 
Mechanics Vacancies – 3 
Body Shop Vacancies – 0 
General Utility  Vacancies – 0 
 
We continue to clean and disinfect the entire fleet daily and clean and power wash the 
bus shelters daily.   
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GRTC Transit System 
Staff Report 

 
 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2022 
Item Title: Monthly Ridership Report 
 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The “Monthly Ridership Report” (MRR), includes comparisons between the ridership of the 
current month, prior month, year prior (during COVID pandemic), and 2 years prior (pre-COVID 
pandemic) to allow for a broad understanding of overall ridership trends. The MRR includes 
ridership data for all services GRTC offers including fixed route (local, express, and Pulse), 
specialized transportation (CARE, CARE Plus, and CARE On-Demand), and Van Pool. Fixed 
route and specialized transportation data is shown as system-wide totals as well as broken 
down by mode, route, and jurisdiction; each of which has an accompanying supplemental graph 
to aid in visualizing trends. 

 
UPDATES:  

 
Ridership update for the month of October 2022 will be provided by Sam Sink. 
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 (October 

2022)

 (September 

2022) MoM%

 (October 

2021)

YoY % 

(2021)

 (October 

2020)

YoY % 

(2020)

 (October 

2019)

YoY % 

(2019)

Fixed Route

Local-Fixed Route 648,813 650,232 -0.22% 594,994 9.05% 555,068 16.89% 593,640 9.29%

  - Richmond (fixed)  535,039 539,459 -0.82% 497,965 7.45% 467,998 14.33% 497,247 7.60%

   -Henrico (fixed) 113,774 110,772 2.71% 97,030 17.26% 87,071 30.67% 96,393 18.03%
Local-Pulse 153,913 157,319 -2.17% 156,401 -1.59% 125,507 22.63% 222,916 -30.95%

Express Routes (total) 8,531 9,126 -6.52% 5,995 42.29% 7,784 9.60% 28,800 -70.38%

Total Fixed Route 811,256 816,677 -0.66% 757,391 7.11% 688,359 17.85% 856,007 -5.23%

Specialized Transportation

CARE 16,042 16,336 -1.80% 18,576 -13.64% 16,008 0.21% 19,714 -18.63%

  - Richmond (care) 9,639 10,038 -3.97% 10,906 -11.62% 9,848 -2.12% 12,179 -20.86%

  - Chesterfield (care) 97 97 0.00% 187 -48.13% 131 n/a n/a n/a

   -Henrico (care) 6,306 6,201 1.69% 7,483 -15.73% 6,029 4.59% 7,535 -16.31%

CARE Plus 4,329 4,080 6.10% 4,343 -0.32% 3,284 31.82% 5,487 -21.10%

  - Richmond (care plus) 552 542 1.85% 576 -4.17% 352 56.82% 371 48.79%

   -Henrico (care plus) 3,777 3,538 6.76% 3,767 0.27% 2,932 28.82% 5,116 -26.17%

CARE On-Demand Unavailable 4,466 3,252 2,076 2,895

  - Richmond (care On-Demand) 1,982 -100.00% 1,331 -100.00% 985 -100.00% 1,185 -100.00%

   -Henrico (care On-Demand) 2,484 -100.00% 1,921 -100.00% 1,091 -100.00% 1,710 -100.00%

Total Specialized 20,371 24,882 -18.13% 26,171 -22.16% 21,368 -4.67% 28,096 -27.50%

 TOTAL FIXED ROUTE & SPECIALIZED 831,627 841,559 -1.18% 783,562 6.13% 709,727 17.18% 884,103 -5.94%

2023 FYTD

2022 FYTD   
(July '21 - 

October '21 )

YoY %'    

(FY2022)

2021 FYTD   
(July '20 - 

October '20)

YoY %'    

(FY2021)

2020 FYTD   
(July '19 - 

October '19)

YoY % 

(FY2020)
 (September 

'22)

(September 

'21)

YoY %  

(FY2022)
(September 

'20)

YoY % 

(FY2021)

Fixed Route Van Pool

Local- Fixed Route 2,569,935 2,254,596 13.99% 2,113,503 21.60% 2,289,298 12.26% Van Pool 12,314 10,002 23.12% 10,200 20.73%

Local- Pulse 598,347 575,914 3.90% 465,887 28.43% 601,168 -0.47% **Vanpool data is received a month behind

Express Routes (total) 36,697 32,731 12.12% 21,353 71.86% 150,343 -75.59%

Total Fixed Route 3,204,979 2,863,241 11.94% 2,600,743 23.23% 3,040,809 5.40%

2023 FYTD

2022 FYTD     
(July '21 - 

September '21)

YoY %  

(FY2022)

2021 FYTD     
(July '20 - 

September '20)

YoY %  

(FY2021)

Specialized Transportation

CARE/CARE Plus 84,048 87,785 -4.26% 68,905 21.98% 97,653 -13.93% TOTAL TRIPS 3,313,414 2,972,041 11.49% 2,687,535 23.29%

CARE On-Demand 12,073 11,013          9.62% 7,687            57.06% 10,455          15.48%

Total Specialized 96,121 98,798 -2.71% 76,592 25.50% 108,880 -11.72%

 TOTAL FIXED ROUTE & SPECIALIZED 3,301,100 2,962,039 11.45% 2,677,335 23.30% 3,150,438 4.78%

GRTC TRANSIT SYSTEM

MONTHLY RIDERSHIP REPORT October 2022
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GRTC Transit System 
Staff Report 

 
 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2022 
Item Title: Rider Comments 
 

 

 
CURRENT STATUS: 
 
Safety and Service Compliance Manager, Monica Carter, will answer any questions on 
the summary of rider comments for the month of October as provided below. 
 
 

OCTOBER REPORT: 

Complaint Verified 
Non-

Verified 
Questionable 

Beyond 
GRTC 

Control 

Under 
Investigation 

Total 

Rude Operator 1 16 3 1 0 21 

Passed Up 
Passenger 

7 19 5 6 0 37 

No Show 14 4 2 2 0 22 

Late Schedule 7 10 9 7 0 33 

Improper 
Operations of 
Vehicle 

3 9 4 4 0 20 

Early Schedule 4 5 2 0 0 11 

Other- 
Miscellaneous 

4 2 3 0 1 10 

Total 40 65 28 20 1 154 

 

Definitions for Complaints: 

 Verified – complaint was able to be verified   

 Non-Verified – complaint could not be verified based on the information provided    

 Questionable – complaint could not be confirmed or absolutely denied based on the information provided 

 Beyond Our Control – complaint is out of GRTC’s control        

 Under Investigation – more research is needed based on information provided 
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TREND REPORT: 

Complaint 
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Rude Operator 8 5 5 7 1        

Passed Up 
Passenger 

8 10 8 9 7        

No Show 15 14 13 16 14        

Late Schedule 11 11 4 5 7        

Improper 
Operations of 

Vehicle 

4 9 4 3 3        

Early Schedule 2 3 5 4 4        

Other- 
Miscellaneous 

0 4 1 1 4        

Total 48 56 40 45 40        

             

Commendations 5 5 3 5 8 
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GRTC Transit System 
Staff Report 

 
 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2022 
Item Title: September 2022 Financial Report 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Attached is the Financial Report for the three months ended September 30, 2022.  John 
Zinzarella will highlight the key points. 
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Revenues
Year to date Revenues unfavorable to budget (2,246,721.77)$    
Year to Date Actual Revenues 15,442,975.57$   
Year to Date Budgeted Revenues 17,689,697.34$   

Unfavorable Federal Funds due to lower than budgeted operating expenditures 

Operating Expenditures
Year to date Operating Expenditures lower than budgeted amounts 1,963,758.39$     
Year to date Actual Operating Expenditures 14,086,910.61$   
Year to Date Budgeted Operating Expenditures 16,050,669.00$   

Lower than budgeted expenses primarily the result of lower than budgeted headcount in 
Transportation, Maintenance and Administration, and lower than budgeted materials and supplies
and lower than budgeted purchased transportation expenses due to lower demand 

Net Operating Position - Surplus / (Deficit) 1,355,064.96$     

Balance Sheet and Cash Flow

Strong balance sheet with cash position of $6,870,440

Financial Report
For the Three Months Ending September 30, 2022

Key Highlights

40



Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav) Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

4100 Directly Generated Funds 261,211.49$        222,457.73$        38,753.76$          657,002.86$        628,952.04$        28,050.82$          
4110 Total Passenger Fares 137,074.33          112,409.33          24,665.00            335,229.67          337,228.00          (1,998.33)             
4120 Park and Ride Parking Revenues -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
4130 Non Public Transportation Revenue -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
4140 Auxiliary Transportation Revenue 38,667.00            50,416.67            (11,749.67)           116,001.00          151,250.00          (35,249.00)           
4150 Other Agency Revenues 85,470.16            59,631.73            25,838.43            205,772.19          140,474.04          65,298.15            

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
4170 Subsidy from Other Sectors of Operations -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
4180 Extraordinary or Special Items -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
4190 Total Recoveries -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

4200 Directly Generated Dedicated Funds

4300 Local Government Funds 2,880,333.25$    2,877,198.11$    3,135.14$            8,649,790.14$    8,631,594.32$    18,195.82$          
4310 General Revenues of the Local Government 2,880,333.25       2,877,198.11       3,135.14               8,649,790.14       8,631,594.32       18,195.82            

4400 State Government Funds 2,029,128.26$    2,078,135.92$    (49,007.66)$         6,069,871.30$    6,234,407.75$    (164,536.45)$      
4410 General Revenues of the State Government 2,029,128.26       2,078,135.92       (49,007.66)           6,069,871.30       6,234,407.75       (164,536.45)         

4500 Federal Funds 22,902.65$          713,500.08$        (690,597.43)$      65,311.27$          2,194,743.24$    (2,129,431.97)$   
5307 FTA Urbanized Area Formula Program 22,902.65            713,500.08          (690,597.43)         65,311.27            2,194,743.24       (2,129,431.97)      
5307 CARES Act Urbanized Area Program Funds -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

4600 Non Added Revenues -$                      -$                      -$                      1,000.00$            -$                      1,000.00$            
4630 Sales and Disposals of Assets -                        -                        -                        1,000.00               -                        1,000.00               

Total Sources of Funds 5,193,575.65$    5,891,291.83$    (697,716.18)$      15,442,975.57$  17,689,697.34$  (2,246,721.77)$   

4160 Revenues Accrued Through a 
Purchased Transporation Agreement

Month Ended September 30, 2022 Year to Date September 30, 2022 

GRTC Transit System
Source of Funds

Year to Date September 30, 2022 
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GRTC Transit System 
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

 

 

 

Revenues are unfavorable versus budget by $2.25M or 12.70% as a result of: 

• Below budget operating expenses year to date, combined with timing of spending versus the 

budget assumptions for federal reimbursement $2.13M.  

 

 

Source of Funds Budget Actual
Over (Under)

% of 

Budget

4100 Directly Generated Funds 628,952.04$        657,002.86$        28,050.82$         4.46%

4200 Directly Generated Dedicated Funds -                         -                         -                        n/a

4300 Local Government Funds 8,631,594.32      8,649,790.14      18,195.82            0.21%

4400 State Government Funds 6,234,407.75      6,069,871.30      (164,536.45)        -2.64%

4500 Federal Funds 2,194,743.24      65,311.27            (2,129,431.97)    -97.02%

4600 Non Added Revenues -                         1,000.00               1,000.00              n/a

17,689,697.34$  15,442,975.57$  (2,246,721.77)$  -12.70%
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Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav) Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav) Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav) Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav) Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR 6,609,033.83$     7,305,758.93$     696,725.10$        1,027,687.45$    1,055,918.39$    28,230.94$         301,480.82$       337,791.26$       36,310.44$         1,876,253.20$     2,166,069.36$     289,816.16$        9,814,455.29$     10,865,537.93$   1,051,082.64$     
01. Operator Salaries and Wages 3,685,635.39       3,987,825.83       302,190.44          -                      -                      -                        3,685,635.39       3,987,825.83       302,190.44          
02. Operator's Paid Absences 493,451.63          485,815.45          (7,636.18)             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                        -                        -                        493,451.63          485,815.45          (7,636.18)             

Operator Vacation 224,751.38          200,708.71          (24,042.67)           -                      -                      -                        224,751.38          200,708.71          (24,042.67)           
Operator Sick 102,921.82          125,648.81          22,726.99            -                      -                      -                        102,921.82          125,648.81          22,726.99            
Holiday 165,778.43          159,457.93          (6,320.50)             -                      -                      -                        165,778.43          159,457.93          (6,320.50)             
Operator FMLA or other leave -                        -                        -                        

490,401.18          541,906.10          51,504.92            670,183.57         633,635.62         (36,547.95)          212,209.11         247,617.81         35,408.70           1,272,337.80       1,451,206.94       178,869.14          2,645,131.66       2,874,366.47       229,234.81          

Dispatch 63,590.57            93,884.12            30,293.55            -                      -                      -                        63,590.57            93,884.12            30,293.55            
Operations Supervision 426,810.61          448,021.98          21,211.37            -                      -                      -                        426,810.61          448,021.98          21,211.37            

Maintenance -                        670,183.57         633,635.62         (36,547.95)          212,209.11         247,617.81         35,408.70           -                        882,392.68          881,253.44          (1,139.24)             
Administration -                        -                        -                        -                      -                      1,272,337.80       1,451,206.94       178,869.14          1,272,337.80       1,451,206.94       178,869.14          

-                        -                        -                        43,739.78           75,616.44           31,876.66           18,037.35           -                      (18,037.35)          -                        -                        -                        61,777.13            75,616.44            13,839.31            

Vacation -                        18,121.62           -                      (18,121.62)          7,794.18             -                      (7,794.18)            -                        25,915.80            -                        (25,915.80)           
Sick -                        8,186.09             75,616.44           67,430.35           2,236.06             -                      (2,236.06)            -                        10,422.15            75,616.44            65,194.29            
Holiday -                        16,697.97           -                      (16,697.97)          6,840.71             -                      (6,840.71)            -                        23,538.68            -                        (23,538.68)           
FMLA or other leave -                        734.10                -                      (734.10)               1,166.40             -                      (1,166.40)            -                        1,900.50              -                        (1,900.50)             
05. Fringe Benefits 1,939,545.63       2,290,211.55       350,665.92          313,764.10         346,666.33         32,902.23           71,234.36           90,173.45           18,939.09           603,915.40          714,862.42          110,947.03          2,928,459.48       3,441,913.74       513,454.26          

Employment Taxes 332,597.24          376,043.73          43,446.49            53,376.26           52,602.38           (773.87)               16,901.23           20,556.43           3,655.20             101,334.37          120,474.52          19,140.15            504,209.10          569,677.06          65,467.96            
Health and Welfare Expenses 915,415.32          1,102,575.30       187,159.98          146,908.75         154,232.30         7,323.55             46,517.66           60,272.28           13,754.62           278,905.01          353,236.12          74,331.11            1,387,746.74       1,670,316.00       282,569.26          
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans 536,218.33          631,101.68          94,883.35            83,117.01           100,253.17         17,136.16           -                      -                      -                      176,817.01          186,385.38          9,568.37              796,152.35          917,740.23          121,587.88          
Workers Compensation 78,144.43            76,736.60            (1,407.82)             12,540.87           10,734.20           (1,806.67)            3,970.98             4,194.81             223.83                23,808.73            24,584.39            775.66                  118,465.00          116,250.00          (2,215.00)             
Other Fringe Benefits 77,170.31            103,754.24          26,583.93            17,821.22           28,844.27           11,023.06           3,844.48             5,149.92             1,305.44             23,050.28            30,182.02            7,131.74              121,886.29          167,930.45          46,044.16            
5020. SERVICES 11,823.00$          15,000.00$          3,177.00$            -$                    -$                    -$                    199,536.41$       170,625.00$       (28,911.41)$        232,032.09$        325,125.25$        93,093.16$          443,391.50$        510,750.25$        67,358.75$          
03. Professional and Technical Services -                        -                        -                        -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      67,373.25            216,740.00          149,366.75          67,373.25            216,740.00          149,366.75          

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services -                        -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Audit Fees -                        -                      -                      30,144.00            20,000.00            (10,144.00)           30,144.00            20,000.00            (10,144.00)           
Legal Fees -                        -                      -                      26,021.60            12,495.00            (13,526.60)           26,021.60            12,495.00            (13,526.60)           

Human Resources Consulting -                        -                      -                      13,635.00            13,995.00            360.00                  13,635.00            13,995.00            360.00                  
Planning and Scheduling Consulting -                        -                      -                      -                        153,750.00          153,750.00          -                        153,750.00          153,750.00          

Computer Consulting -                        -                      -                      31.25                    1,500.00              1,468.75              31.25                    1,500.00              1,468.75              
Advertising and Promotion -                        -                      -                      (2,458.60)             15,000.00            17,458.60            (2,458.60)             15,000.00            17,458.60            

05. Contract Maintenance Services -                        -                        -                        -                      -                      -                      199,536.41         170,625.00         (28,911.41)          103,390.18          12,495.00            (90,895.18)           302,926.59          183,120.00          (119,806.59)         

Vehicle Maintenance -                        -                      -                      -                        -                        -                        -                        
Computer Maintenance -                        -                      -                      103,390.18          12,495.00            (90,895.18)           103,390.18          12,495.00            (90,895.18)           

BRT Station Maintenance -                        -                      24,440.00           49,000.00           24,560.00           -                        24,440.00            49,000.00            24,560.00            
Building Maintenance -                        -                      175,096.41         121,625.00         (53,471.41)          -                        175,096.41          121,625.00          (53,471.41)           

09. Other Services 11,823.00            15,000.00            3,177.00              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      61,268.66            95,890.25            34,621.59            73,091.66            110,890.25          37,798.59            

Advertising -                        -                      -                      4,670.56              5,700.00              1,029.44              4,670.56              5,700.00              1,029.44              
Ad commission  Lottery Updates -                        -                      -                      35,846.55            44,925.00            9,078.45              35,846.55            44,925.00            9,078.45              

ADA Ride -                        -                      -                      16,233.00            16,752.75            519.75                  16,233.00            16,752.75            519.75                  
Drug and Alcohol Testing 3,408.00              -                        (3,408.00)             -                      -                      -                        3,408.00              -                        (3,408.00)             

Medical Exam Testing 8,415.00              15,000.00            6,585.00              -                      -                      -                        8,415.00              15,000.00            6,585.00              
Misc -                        -                        -                        -                      -                      -                      -                      4,518.55              28,512.50            23,993.95            4,518.55              28,512.50            23,993.95            

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED 581,329.78$        826,770.41$        245,440.63$        726,913.62$       764,759.34$       37,845.72$         66,565.46$         71,783.41$         5,217.95$           261,760.19$        350,880.00$        89,119.81$          1,636,569.05$     2,014,193.16$     377,624.11$        
01. Fuel and Lubricants 431,811.92          681,770.41          249,958.49          21,175.43           20,927.35           (248.08)               -                      4,741.82              -                        (4,741.82)             457,729.17          702,697.76          244,968.59          
02. Tires and Tubes 149,517.86          145,000.00          (4,517.86)             -                      -                      -                        149,517.86          145,000.00          (4,517.86)             
09. Other Materials and Supplies -                        -                        -                        705,738.19         743,831.99         38,093.80           66,565.46           71,783.41           5,217.95             257,018.37          350,880.00          93,861.63            1,029,322.02       1,166,495.40       137,173.38          

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act) -                        705,738.19         743,831.99         38,093.80           -                      1,466.71              -                        (1,466.71)             707,204.90          743,831.99          36,627.09            
Other Equipment and Supplies -                        -                        -                        -                      66,565.46           71,783.41           5,217.95             115,735.00          112,600.00          (3,135.00)             182,300.46          184,383.41          2,082.95              

Office Equipment -                        -                      -                      132,354.47          231,480.00          99,125.53            132,354.47          231,480.00          99,125.53            
Admin. Supplies -                        -                      -                      7,462.19              6,800.00              (662.19)                7,462.19              6,800.00              (662.19)                

5040. UTILITIES -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    236,912.76$        242,482.25$        5,569.49$            236,912.76$        242,482.25$        5,569.49$            
Telecommunication -                        -                      -                      54,637.53            62,400.00            7,762.47              54,637.53            62,400.00            7,762.47              
Utilities -                        -                      -                      182,275.23          180,082.25          (2,192.98)             182,275.23          180,082.25          (2,192.98)             
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    399,873.37$        459,352.72$        59,479.35$          399,873.37$        459,352.72$        59,479.35$          
General Liability -                        313,271.00         (313,271.00)        -                      262,429.44          262,429.44          313,271.00          262,429.44          (50,841.56)           
Auto Liability -                        -                      -                      11,198.76            11,199.00            0.24                      11,198.76            11,199.00            0.24                      
Physical Damage -                        -                      -                      18,415.55            128,745.00          110,329.45          18,415.55            128,745.00          110,329.45          
All Other -                        (313,271.00)        -                      313,271.00         -                      370,259.06          56,979.28            (313,279.78)         56,988.06            56,979.28            (8.78)                    
5060. TAXES -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE 1,419,552.70$     1,810,890.25$     391,337.55$        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      1,419,552.70$     1,810,890.25$     391,337.55$        
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran 1,187,029.67       1,548,560.25       361,530.58          -                      -                      -                        1,187,029.67       1,548,560.25       361,530.58          
02. Purchased Transportation VanPool 232,523.03          262,330.00          29,806.97            -                      -                      -                        232,523.03          262,330.00          29,806.97            

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 19,393.17$          25,000.00$          5,606.83$            -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    116,762.77$        122,462.43$        5,699.66$            136,155.94$        147,462.43$        11,306.49$          
02. Travel and Meetings -                        -                      -                      21,943.83            34,435.00            12,491.17            21,943.83            34,435.00            12,491.17            
08. Advertising/Promotion Media -                        -                      -                      4,331.47              6,593.43              2,261.96              4,331.47              6,593.43              2,261.96              
09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses 19,393.17            25,000.00            5,606.83              -                      -                      90,487.47            81,434.00            (9,053.47)             109,880.64          106,434.00          (3,446.64)             

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
5900 ADA Expenses -$                      -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Total Expenses 8,641,132.48$     9,983,419.59$     1,342,287.11$     1,754,601.07$    1,820,677.73$    66,076.66$         567,582.69$       580,199.67$       12,616.98$         3,123,594.38$     3,666,372.01$     542,777.63$        14,086,910.61$   16,050,669.00$   1,963,758.39$     
61.34% 62.20% 12.46% 11.34% 4.03% 3.61% 22.17% 22.84% 100.00% 100.00%

GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses

Year to Date September 30, 2022 

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle 
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)

Total GRTCVehicle Operations Vehicle Maintenance Facility Maintenance General Administration
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR 9,814,455.29$     10,865,537.93$   1,051,082.64$     
01. Operator Salaries and Wages 3,685,635.39       3,987,825.83       302,190.44           

02. Operator's Paid Absences 493,451.63           485,815.45           (7,636.18)              

Operator Vacation 224,751.38           200,708.71           (24,042.67)           
Operator Sick 102,921.82           125,648.81           22,726.99             
Holiday 165,778.43           159,457.93           (6,320.50)              
Operator FMLA or other leave -                         -                         

2,645,131.66       2,874,366.47       229,234.81           

Dispatch 63,590.57             93,884.12             30,293.55             
Operations Supervision 426,810.61           448,021.98           21,211.37             

Maintenance 882,392.68           881,253.44           (1,139.24)              
Administration 1,272,337.80       1,451,206.94       178,869.14           

61,777.13             75,616.44             13,839.31             

Vacation 25,915.80             -                         (25,915.80)           
Sick 10,422.15             75,616.44             65,194.29             
Holiday 23,538.68             -                         (23,538.68)           
FMLA or other leave 1,900.50               -                         (1,900.50)              
05. Fringe Benefits 2,928,459.48       3,441,913.74       513,454.26           

Employment Taxes 504,209.10           569,677.06           65,467.96             
Health and Welfare Expenses 1,387,746.74       1,670,316.00       282,569.26           
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans 796,152.35           917,740.23           121,587.88           
Workers Compensation 118,465.00           116,250.00           (2,215.00)              
Other Fringe Benefits 121,886.29           167,930.45           46,044.16             
5020. SERVICES 443,391.50$        510,750.25$        67,358.75$          
03. Professional and Technical Services 67,373.25             216,740.00           149,366.75           

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services -                         -                         -                         
Audit Fees 30,144.00             20,000.00             (10,144.00)           
Legal Fees 26,021.60             12,495.00             (13,526.60)           

Human Resources Consulting 13,635.00             13,995.00             360.00                  
Planning and Scheduling Consulting -                         153,750.00           153,750.00           

Computer Consulting 31.25                    1,500.00               1,468.75               
Advertising and Promotion (2,458.60)              15,000.00             17,458.60             

05. Contract Maintenance Services 302,926.59           183,120.00           (119,806.59)         

Vehicle Maintenance -                         -                         -                         
Computer Maintenance 103,390.18           12,495.00             (90,895.18)           

BRT Station Maintenance 24,440.00             49,000.00             24,560.00             
Building Maintenance 175,096.41           121,625.00           (53,471.41)           

09. Other Services 73,091.66             110,890.25           37,798.59             

Advertising 4,670.56               5,700.00               1,029.44               
Ad commission  Lottery Updates 35,846.55             44,925.00             9,078.45               

ADA Ride 16,233.00             16,752.75             519.75                  
Drug and Alcohol Testing 3,408.00               -                         (3,408.00)              

Medical Exam Testing 8,415.00               15,000.00             6,585.00               
Misc 4,518.55               28,512.50             23,993.95             

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED 1,636,569.05$     2,014,193.16$     377,624.11$        
01. Fuel and Lubricants 457,729.17           702,697.76           244,968.59           

02. Tires and Tubes 149,517.86           145,000.00           (4,517.86)              

09. Other Materials and Supplies 1,029,322.02       1,166,495.40       137,173.38           

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act) 707,204.90           743,831.99           36,627.09             
Other Equipment and Supplies 182,300.46           184,383.41           2,082.95               

Office Equipment 132,354.47           231,480.00           99,125.53             
Admin. Supplies 7,462.19               6,800.00               (662.19)                 

Total GRTC

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle 
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

Total GRTC

5040. UTILITIES 236,912.76$        242,482.25$        5,569.49$             
Telecommunication 54,637.53             62,400.00             7,762.47               
Utilities 182,275.23           180,082.25           (2,192.98)              
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS 399,873.37$        459,352.72$        59,479.35$          
General Liability 313,271.00           262,429.44           (50,841.56)           
Auto Liability 11,198.76             11,199.00             0.24                       
Physical Damage 18,415.55             128,745.00           110,329.45           
All Other 56,988.06             56,979.28             (8.78)                     
5060. TAXES -$                      -$                      -$                      
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE 1,419,552.70$     1,810,890.25$     391,337.55$        
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran 1,187,029.67       1,548,560.25       361,530.58           

02. Purchased Transportation VanPool 232,523.03           262,330.00           29,806.97             

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 136,155.94$        147,462.43$        11,306.49$          
02. Travel and Meetings 21,943.83             34,435.00             12,491.17             

08. Advertising/Promotion Media 4,331.47               6,593.43               2,261.96               

09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses 109,880.64           106,434.00           (3,446.64)              

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS -$                      -$                      -$                      
5900 ADA Expenses -$                      -$                      -$                      

Total Expenses 14,086,910.61$   16,050,669.00$   1,963,758.39$     
100.00% 100.00%
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR
01. Operator Salaries and Wages

02. Operator's Paid Absences

Operator Vacation
Operator Sick
Holiday
Operator FMLA or other leave

Dispatch
Operations Supervision

Maintenance
Administration

Vacation
Sick
Holiday
FMLA or other leave
05. Fringe Benefits

Employment Taxes
Health and Welfare Expenses
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans
Workers Compensation
Other Fringe Benefits
5020. SERVICES
03. Professional and Technical Services

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services
Audit Fees
Legal Fees

Human Resources Consulting
Planning and Scheduling Consulting

Computer Consulting
Advertising and Promotion

05. Contract Maintenance Services

Vehicle Maintenance
Computer Maintenance

BRT Station Maintenance
Building Maintenance

09. Other Services

Advertising
Ad commission  Lottery Updates

ADA Ride
Drug and Alcohol Testing

Medical Exam Testing
Misc

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED
01. Fuel and Lubricants

02. Tires and Tubes

09. Other Materials and Supplies

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act)
Other Equipment and Supplies

Office Equipment
Admin. Supplies

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle 
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

6,609,033.83$     7,305,758.93$     696,725.10$        
3,685,635.39       3,987,825.83       302,190.44           

493,451.63           485,815.45           (7,636.18)              

224,751.38           200,708.71           (24,042.67)           
102,921.82           125,648.81           22,726.99             
165,778.43           159,457.93           (6,320.50)              

-                         

490,401.18           541,906.10           51,504.92             

63,590.57             93,884.12             30,293.55             
426,810.61           448,021.98           21,211.37             

-                         
-                         -                         -                         

-                         -                         -                         

-                         
-                         
-                         
-                         

1,939,545.63       2,290,211.55       350,665.92           

332,597.24           376,043.73           43,446.49             
915,415.32           1,102,575.30       187,159.98           
536,218.33           631,101.68           94,883.35             

78,144.43             76,736.60             (1,407.82)              
77,170.31             103,754.24           26,583.93             
11,823.00$          15,000.00$          3,177.00$             

-                         -                         -                         

-                         -                         -                         
-                         
-                         
-                         
-                         
-                         
-                         

-                         -                         -                         

-                         
-                         
-                         
-                         

11,823.00             15,000.00             3,177.00               

-                         
-                         
-                         

3,408.00               -                         (3,408.00)              
8,415.00               15,000.00             6,585.00               

-                         -                         -                         
581,329.78$        826,770.41$        245,440.63$        
431,811.92           681,770.41           249,958.49           

149,517.86           145,000.00           (4,517.86)              

-                         -                         -                         

-                         
-                         -                         -                         

-                         
-                         

Vehicle Operations
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

5040. UTILITIES
Telecommunication
Utilities
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS
General Liability
Auto Liability
Physical Damage
All Other
5060. TAXES
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran

02. Purchased Transportation VanPool

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
02. Travel and Meetings

08. Advertising/Promotion Media

09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS
5900 ADA Expenses

Total Expenses

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

Vehicle Operations

-$                      -$                      -$                      
-                         
-                         

-$                      -$                      -$                      
-                         
-                         
-                         
-                         

-$                      -$                      -$                      
1,419,552.70$     1,810,890.25$     391,337.55$        
1,187,029.67       1,548,560.25       361,530.58           

232,523.03           262,330.00           29,806.97             

19,393.17$          25,000.00$          5,606.83$             
-                         

-                         

19,393.17             25,000.00             5,606.83               

-$                      
-$                      

8,641,132.48$     9,983,419.59$     1,342,287.11$     
61.34% 62.20%
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR
01. Operator Salaries and Wages

02. Operator's Paid Absences

Operator Vacation
Operator Sick
Holiday
Operator FMLA or other leave

Dispatch
Operations Supervision

Maintenance
Administration

Vacation
Sick
Holiday
FMLA or other leave
05. Fringe Benefits

Employment Taxes
Health and Welfare Expenses
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans
Workers Compensation
Other Fringe Benefits
5020. SERVICES
03. Professional and Technical Services

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services
Audit Fees
Legal Fees

Human Resources Consulting
Planning and Scheduling Consulting

Computer Consulting
Advertising and Promotion

05. Contract Maintenance Services

Vehicle Maintenance
Computer Maintenance

BRT Station Maintenance
Building Maintenance

09. Other Services

Advertising
Ad commission  Lottery Updates

ADA Ride
Drug and Alcohol Testing

Medical Exam Testing
Misc

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED
01. Fuel and Lubricants

02. Tires and Tubes

09. Other Materials and Supplies

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act)
Other Equipment and Supplies

Office Equipment
Admin. Supplies

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle 
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

1,027,687.45$    1,055,918.39$    28,230.94$         
-                       

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       

670,183.57         633,635.62         (36,547.95)          

-                       
-                       

670,183.57         633,635.62         (36,547.95)          
-                       

43,739.78           75,616.44           31,876.66           

18,121.62           -                       (18,121.62)          
8,186.09              75,616.44           67,430.35           

16,697.97           -                       (16,697.97)          
734.10                 -                       (734.10)                

313,764.10         346,666.33         32,902.23           

53,376.26           52,602.38           (773.87)                
146,908.75         154,232.30         7,323.55              

83,117.01           100,253.17         17,136.16           
12,540.87           10,734.20           (1,806.67)            
17,821.22           28,844.27           11,023.06           

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

726,913.62$       764,759.34$       37,845.72$         
21,175.43           20,927.35           (248.08)                

-                       

705,738.19         743,831.99         38,093.80           

705,738.19         743,831.99         38,093.80           
-                       
-                       
-                       

Vehicle Maintenance
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

5040. UTILITIES
Telecommunication
Utilities
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS
General Liability
Auto Liability
Physical Damage
All Other
5060. TAXES
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran

02. Purchased Transportation VanPool

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
02. Travel and Meetings

08. Advertising/Promotion Media

09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS
5900 ADA Expenses

Total Expenses

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

Vehicle Maintenance

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       
-                       

-$                     -$                     -$                     
313,271.00         262,429.44         (50,841.56)          

-                       
-                       

(313,271.00)        (262,429.44)        50,841.56           
-$                     

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       

-                       

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       

-                       

-                       

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-$                     -$                     -$                     

1,754,601.07$    1,820,677.73$    66,076.66$         
12.46% 11.34%
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR
01. Operator Salaries and Wages

02. Operator's Paid Absences

Operator Vacation
Operator Sick
Holiday
Operator FMLA or other leave

Dispatch
Operations Supervision

Maintenance
Administration

Vacation
Sick
Holiday
FMLA or other leave
05. Fringe Benefits

Employment Taxes
Health and Welfare Expenses
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans
Workers Compensation
Other Fringe Benefits
5020. SERVICES
03. Professional and Technical Services

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services
Audit Fees
Legal Fees

Human Resources Consulting
Planning and Scheduling Consulting

Computer Consulting
Advertising and Promotion

05. Contract Maintenance Services

Vehicle Maintenance
Computer Maintenance

BRT Station Maintenance
Building Maintenance

09. Other Services

Advertising
Ad commission  Lottery Updates

ADA Ride
Drug and Alcohol Testing

Medical Exam Testing
Misc

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED
01. Fuel and Lubricants

02. Tires and Tubes

09. Other Materials and Supplies

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act)
Other Equipment and Supplies

Office Equipment
Admin. Supplies

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle 
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

301,480.82$       337,791.26$       36,310.44$         
-                       

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       

212,209.11         247,617.81         35,408.70           

-                       
-                       

212,209.11         247,617.81         35,408.70           
-                       

18,037.35           -                       (18,037.35)          

7,794.18              -                       (7,794.18)            
2,236.06              -                       (2,236.06)            
6,840.71              -                       (6,840.71)            
1,166.40              -                       (1,166.40)            

71,234.36           90,173.45           18,939.09           

16,901.23           20,556.43           3,655.20              
46,517.66           60,272.28           13,754.62           

-                       -                       -                       
3,970.98              4,194.81              223.83                 
3,844.48              5,149.92              1,305.44              

199,536.41$       170,625.00$       (28,911.41)$        
-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

199,536.41         170,625.00         (28,911.41)          

-                       
-                       

24,440.00           49,000.00           24,560.00           
175,096.41         121,625.00         (53,471.41)          

-                       -                       -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

-                       -                       -                       
66,565.46$         71,783.41$         5,217.95$           

-                       

-                       

66,565.46           71,783.41           5,217.95              

-                       
66,565.46           71,783.41           5,217.95              

-                       
-                       

Facility Maintenance
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

5040. UTILITIES
Telecommunication
Utilities
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS
General Liability
Auto Liability
Physical Damage
All Other
5060. TAXES
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran

02. Purchased Transportation VanPool

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
02. Travel and Meetings

08. Advertising/Promotion Media

09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS
5900 ADA Expenses

Total Expenses

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

Facility Maintenance

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       
-                       

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       
-$                     

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       

-                       

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-                       

-                       

-                       

-$                     -$                     -$                     
-$                     -$                     -$                     

567,582.69$       580,199.67$       12,616.98$         
4.03% 3.61%
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

Total Operating Costs
5010. LABOR
01. Operator Salaries and Wages

02. Operator's Paid Absences

Operator Vacation
Operator Sick
Holiday
Operator FMLA or other leave

Dispatch
Operations Supervision

Maintenance
Administration

Vacation
Sick
Holiday
FMLA or other leave
05. Fringe Benefits

Employment Taxes
Health and Welfare Expenses
Retirement Costs/Pension Plans
Workers Compensation
Other Fringe Benefits
5020. SERVICES
03. Professional and Technical Services

BRT Fare Collection and Security Services
Audit Fees
Legal Fees

Human Resources Consulting
Planning and Scheduling Consulting

Computer Consulting
Advertising and Promotion

05. Contract Maintenance Services

Vehicle Maintenance
Computer Maintenance

BRT Station Maintenance
Building Maintenance

09. Other Services

Advertising
Ad commission  Lottery Updates

ADA Ride
Drug and Alcohol Testing

Medical Exam Testing
Misc

5030. MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES CONSUMED
01. Fuel and Lubricants

02. Tires and Tubes

09. Other Materials and Supplies

Vechicle Equip. and Parts Supplies (inc Cares Act)
Other Equipment and Supplies

Office Equipment
Admin. Supplies

03. Other Salaries and Wages (Non revenue vehicle 
operator personnel)

04. Other Paid Absences (Non revenue vehicle operator 
personnel)

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

1,876,253.20$     2,166,069.36$     289,816.16$       
-                       

-                         -                         -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       

1,272,337.80       1,451,206.94       178,869.14         

-                       
-                       
-                       

1,272,337.80       1,451,206.94       178,869.14         

-                         -                         -                       

-                       
-                       
-                       
-                       

603,915.40           714,862.42           110,947.03         

101,334.37           120,474.52           19,140.15           
278,905.01           353,236.12           74,331.11           
176,817.01           186,385.38           9,568.37              

23,808.73             24,584.39             775.66                 
23,050.28             30,182.02             7,131.74              

232,032.09$        325,125.25$        93,093.16$         
67,373.25             216,740.00           149,366.75         

-                         -                         -                       
30,144.00             20,000.00             (10,144.00)          
26,021.60             12,495.00             (13,526.60)          
13,635.00             13,995.00             360.00                 

-                         153,750.00           153,750.00         
31.25                    1,500.00               1,468.75              

(2,458.60)              15,000.00             17,458.60           
103,390.18           12,495.00             (90,895.18)          

-                       
103,390.18           12,495.00             (90,895.18)          

-                       
-                       

61,268.66             95,890.25             34,621.59           

4,670.56               5,700.00               1,029.44              
35,846.55             44,925.00             9,078.45              
16,233.00             16,752.75             519.75                 

-                       
-                       

4,518.55               28,512.50             23,993.95           
261,760.19$        350,880.00$        89,119.81$         

4,741.82               -                         (4,741.82)            

-                       

257,018.37           350,880.00           93,861.63           

1,466.71               -                         (1,466.71)            
115,735.00           112,600.00           (3,135.00)            
132,354.47           231,480.00           99,125.53           

7,462.19               6,800.00               (662.19)                

General Administration
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GRTC Transit System
Operating Expenses
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

5040. UTILITIES
Telecommunication
Utilities
5050. CASUALTIES AND LIABILITY COSTS
General Liability
Auto Liability
Physical Damage
All Other
5060. TAXES
5100. PURCHASED TRANSPORTATION SERVICE
01. Purchased Transportation - SpecTran

02. Purchased Transportation VanPool

5090. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
02. Travel and Meetings

08. Advertising/Promotion Media

09. Other Miscellaneous Expenses

5120. LEASES AND RENTALS
5900 ADA Expenses

Total Expenses

Actual Budget
Variance Fav / 

(Unfav)

General Administration

236,912.76$        242,482.25$        5,569.49$           
54,637.53             62,400.00             7,762.47              

182,275.23           180,082.25           (2,192.98)            
399,873.37$        459,352.72$        59,479.35$         

-                       
11,198.76             11,199.00             0.24                     
18,415.55             128,745.00           110,329.45         

370,259.06           319,408.72           (50,850.34)          
-$                      -$                      -$                     
-$                      -$                      -$                     

-                       

-                       

116,762.77$        122,462.43$        5,699.66$           
21,943.83             34,435.00             12,491.17           

4,331.47               6,593.43               2,261.96              

90,487.47             81,434.00             (9,053.47)            

-$                      -$                      -$                     
-$                      -$                      -$                     

3,123,594.38$     3,666,372.01$     542,777.63$       
22.17% 22.84%
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GRTC Transit System 
Year to Date September 30, 2022 

 

  

   

 

Operating Expenses

Budget Actual (Over) Under % of Budget

Vehicle Operations 9,983,419.59$    8,641,132.48$    1,342,287.11$  86.55%

Vehicle Maintenance 1,820,677.73      1,754,601.07      66,076.66          96.37%

Facility Maintenance 580,199.67          567,582.69          12,616.98          97.83%

General Administration 3,666,372.01      3,123,594.38      542,777.63        85.20%

Total GRTC 16,050,669.00$  14,086,910.61$  1,963,758.39$  87.77%

Budget Actual (Over) Under % of Budget

5010. Labor 10,865,537.93$  9,814,455.29$    1,051,082.64$  90.33%

5020. Services 510,750.25          443,391.50          67,358.75          86.81%

5030. Materials and Supplies Consumed 2,014,193.16      1,636,569.05      377,624.11        81.25%

5040. Utilities 242,482.25          236,912.76          5,569.49             97.70%

5050. Casualties and Liability Costs 459,352.72          399,873.37          59,479.35          87.05%

5060. Taxes -                         -                         -                       0.00%

5100. Purchased Transportation Service 1,810,890.25      1,419,552.70      391,337.55        78.39%

5090. Misc Expenses 147,462.43          136,155.94          11,306.49          92.33%

Total GRTC 16,050,669.00$  14,086,910.61$  1,963,758.39$  87.77%

Total Fleet Service Miles 1,311,859.32      1,252,600.08      

Operating Expense per Mile 12.24$                  11.25$                  

Total Fleet Service Hours 119,700.65          114,254.72          

Operating Expense per Hour 134.09$                123.29$                

54



 

 

Operating Expenses are favorable versus budget by $1.96M or 12.23% as a result of: 

• Lower than budgeted labor expenses of $1.051M as a result of below budgeted headcount 

levels in transportation and equipment and facility maintenance groups and higher than 

budgeted vacancy factor in the general and administrative groups  

• Favorable purchased services of $67.36k due to timing of building & computer maintenance 

versus budget  

• Favorable materials and supplies of $377.62k as a result of the timing of purchases versus 

budget calendarization.   

• Slight favorable Utilities expenses of $5.57k.  

• Favorable casualties and liability expense of $59.48k is due to timing of policy expense versus 

budget calendarization.  

• Favorable purchased transportation services of $391.34k due actual demand differing from 

budgetary assumptions 

 

Operating Expense per Mile Budget Actual

Vehicle Operations 7.61$                     6.90$                     

Vehicle Maintenance 1.39                       1.40                       

Facility Maintenance 0.44                       0.45                       

General Administration 2.79                       2.49                       

Total GRTC 12.24$                  11.25$                  

Operating Expense per Mile Budget Actual

5010. Labor 8.28$                     7.84$                     

5020. Services 0.39                       0.35                       

5030. Materials and Supplies Consumed 1.54                       1.31                       

5040. Utilities 0.18                       0.19                       

5050. Casualties and Liability Costs 0.35                       0.32                       

5060. Taxes -                         -                         

5100. Purchased Transportation Service 1.38                       1.13                       

5090. Misc Expenses 0.11                       0.11                       

Total GRTC 12.24$                  11.25$                  
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Operating Expense per Hour Budget Actual

Vehicle Operations 83.40$                  75.63$                  

Vehicle Maintenance 15.21                     15.36                     

Facility Maintenance 4.85                       4.97                       

General Administration 30.63                     27.34                     

Total GRTC 134.09$                123.29$                

Operating Expense per Hour Budget Actual

5010. Labor 90.77$                  85.90$                  

5020. Services 4.27                       3.88                       

5030. Materials and Supplies Consumed 16.83                     14.32                     

5040. Utilities 2.03                       2.07                       

5050. Casualties and Liability Costs 3.84                       3.50                       

5060. Taxes -                         -                         

5100. Purchased Transportation Service 15.13                     12.42                     

5090. Misc Expenses 1.23                       1.19                       

Total GRTC 134.09$                123.29$                

GRTC Headcount @ September 30, 2022  Budget Actual (Over) Under % of Budget

Equipment & Facility Maintenance 71                           60                           11                         84.51%

Transportation 357                        307                        50                         85.99%

Planning, Scheduling & Marketing        19                           19                           -                       100.00%

Insurance & Safety                      9                             11                           (2)                         122.22%

General & Administrative                53                           46                           7                           86.79%

509                        443                        66                         87.03%
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Fav/ 
(Unfav)

Fav/ 
(Unfav)

FY 2023 
Annual 
Budget

Budget Actual Difference Budget Actual Difference
Operating Revenue:
Customer Revenue - Fixed Route -$              -$              -$              F -$              -$              -$              F -$                
Pass Program Revenue 112,409         137,074         24,665           F 337,228         335,230         (1,998)           U 1,348,912       
Charter Revenue -                 -                 -                 F -                 -                 -                 F -                  
Advertising Revenue 50,417           38,667           (11,750)         U 151,250         116,001         (35,249)         U 605,000          
Other Operating Revenue -                 -                 -                 F -                 -                 -                 F -                  

    Total Operating Revenue 162,826$      175,741$      12,915$         F 488,478$      451,231$      (37,247)$       U 1,953,912$     

Other Income:
Ridefinders 57,632           58,526           894                F 134,474         136,426         1,952             F 499,475          
Interest Income 1,500             26,909           25,409           F 4,500             67,387           62,887           F 18,000            
Non-Transportation Income 500                35                  (465)              U 1,500             1,959             459                F 6,000              

    Total Other Income 59,632$         85,470$         25,838$         F 140,474$      205,772$      65,298$         F 523,475$        

Operating Contributions:
COVID Relief Acts VA2020-023 -                 -                 -                 F -                 -                 -                 F -                  
FFCRA Credit -                 -                 -                 F -                 -                 -                 F -                  
Oper contrib - Federal 713,500         22,903           (690,597)       U 2,194,743     59,607           (2,135,136)    U 9,822,082       
Oper contrib - State 2,078,136     2,030,589     (47,547)         U 6,234,408     6,090,178     (144,229)       U 24,937,631     
Oper contrib - CVTA 1,784,583     1,784,583     (0)                   U 5,353,750     5,353,750     (0)                   U 21,415,000     
Oper contrib - Richmond 712,876         714,550         1,674             F 2,138,627     2,142,220     3,593             F 8,554,510       
Oper contrib - Henrico 342,334         342,334         -                 F 1,027,001     1,027,001     -                 F 4,108,005       
Oper contrib - Petersburg 16,667           16,667           0                    F 50,000           50,000           0                    F 200,000          
Oper contrib - Chesterfield 20,739           20,739           (0)                   U 62,216           62,216           (0)                   U 248,863          

      Total Operating Contributions: 5,668,834$   4,932,364$   (736,470)$     U 17,060,745$ 14,784,973$ (2,275,773)$  U 69,286,090$   

       Net Operating Revenue 5,891,292$   5,193,576$   (697,716)$     U 17,689,697$ 15,441,976$ (2,247,722)$  U 71,763,478$   

Operating Expenses:
Equipment & Facility Maintenance 1,059,481     1,000,089     (59,392)         F 3,235,259     2,903,446     (331,813)       F 12,855,827     
Transportation 1,846,492     1,729,953     (116,539)       F 5,660,188     5,246,845     (413,344)       F 22,576,502     
Planning, Scheduling & Marketing 198,186         139,722         (58,464)         F 571,620         371,128         (200,491)       F 2,518,315       
Insurance and Safety 260,094         199,641         (60,453)         F 766,660         688,112         (78,548)         F 3,198,822       
General and Administrative 1,161,758     996,727         (165,030)       F 3,434,625     2,953,543     (481,082)       F 13,825,123     
Purchase of Service - Spectran & Van Pool 603,630         457,708         (145,922)       F 1,810,890     1,419,553     (391,338)       F 7,243,561       
Operating Taxes and Licenses 186,348         162,675         (23,672)         F 571,427         504,284         (67,143)         F 2,267,132       

    Total Operating Expenses 5,315,988$   4,686,516$   (629,472)$     F 16,050,669$ 14,086,911$ (1,963,758)$  F 64,485,283$   

      Change in Net Postion 575,303$      507,060$      (68,244)$       U 1,639,028$   1,355,065$   (283,963)$     U 7,278,195$     

Operating Ratio 11.33% 13.68% 2.35% 11.02% 12.75% 1.73%

Farebox Recovery Ratio 2.39% 3.24% 0.86% 2.37% 2.65% 0.28%

Current Month Year To Date

GRTC Transit System
STATEMENT OF INCOME

BUDGET VS. ACTUAL
For the Three Months Ending September 30, 2022

57



Current Month Prior Month Prior Year End
ASSETS September 30, 2022 August 31, 2022 June 30, 2022
Current Assets:
Cash $6,870,440 $7,175,530 $10,854,007
Working Funds 118,266                       118,266                  118,266             
Capital Funds 6,032,999                    6,007,489               5,969,360         
Accounts Receivable, net 7,296,796                    12,070,322             11,189,036       
Motor Bus Parts Inventory 969,445                       929,389                  997,470             
Gasoline Inventory 9,372                           3,933                       8,485                 
Diesel Fuels Inventory 25,712                         21,644                    15,068               
Lubricants Inventory 28,774                         35,073                    25,718               
Prepayments 878,426                       874,264                  741,455             
Total Current Assets $22,230,230 $27,235,910 $29,918,865

Tangible Property:
Property and Equipment 171,900,525               171,427,118           169,134,398     
Accumulated Depreciation (89,659,611)                (89,259,611)           (88,459,611)      

Net Property $82,240,914 $82,167,507 $80,674,787

Other Assets:
Restricted Funds (LGIP) 8,492,752 8,492,752 8,492,752
Restricted Funds (CVTA Special Fund) 28,087,725 25,623,844 25,960,952
Intangible Asset - Software, net of amortization 922,759 922,759 690,314
Deferred Outflows GASB 68 26,724,818 26,724,818 26,724,818
Deferred Outflows GASB 75 -                                -                           -                     
Total Other Assets 64,228,054 61,764,173 61,868,836

TOTAL ASSETS $168,699,198 $171,167,590 $172,462,488

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 4,977,780                    9,498,569               11,276,118       
Wages Payable 1,268,574                    2,230,377               3,940,563         
Taxes Accrued 43,922                         108,861                  240,310             
Deferred Revenues CVTA 28,926,613                  28,247,315             26,697,984       
Other Current Liabilities 268,450                       1,259,400               723,034             
Total Current Liabilities $35,485,339 $41,344,522 $42,878,009

Non-current Liabilities:
N/P City, OPEB and GASB 68 87,383,777$               87,383,777$           87,383,777$     

Reserves:
Injuries, Loss, and Damage 330,825                       330,825                  330,825             
Total Reserves $330,825 $330,825 $330,825

TOTAL LIABILITIES 123,199,941 129,059,124 130,592,611

Capital:
Common Stock 50,005                         50,005                    50,005               
Paid-In Capital 116,795,705               113,511,973           114,349,393     
Fund Balance - Accumulated Depreciation (87,804,669)                (87,404,669)           (86,604,669)      
Fund Balance - GASB 68 (36,089,951)                (36,089,951)           (36,089,951)      
Fund Balance 52,548,167                  52,041,108             50,165,099       
Total Capital 45,499,257$               42,108,466$           41,869,877$     

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL 168,699,198$             171,167,590$        172,462,488$  

GRTC Transit System

As of September 30, 2022
Balance Sheet
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Greater Richmond Transit Company
Cash Flow Projection
November 15, 2022

Actual Actual Actual Preliminary Expected 
June July August September October

Beginning Balance 8,282,323$     7,205,277$     7,179,984$     3,420,175$     3,114,542$     

Payroll 2,028,277$     5,336,343$     1,947,872$     2,720,504$     2,491,978$     
Insurance -$                 381,200$         -$                 381,200$         -$                 
Medical & Benefits 847,342$         1,118,657$     1,312,534$     1,968,800$     1,312,534$     
Parts/Supplies/Fuel 878,559$         738,695$         878,500$         1,703,942$     1,703,942$     
National Express/Care-On-Demand 412,810$         514,693$         440,939$         435,728$         450,182$         
Vehicle Purchases -$                 -$                 2,682,270$     3,146,885$     -$                 
Marketing/Utilities 143,954$         142,358$         188,894$         171,866$         170,000$         
Other 145,800$         328,946$         164$                549$                432$                
Operating Transfer into Capital -$                 1,598$             -$                 -$                 -$                 
Actual/Expected Expenses 4,456,742$     8,562,490$     7,451,173$     10,529,474$   6,129,068$     

Conservative Gross Excess/(Deficiency) 3,825,580$     (1,357,213)$    (271,189)$       (7,109,299)$    (3,014,526)$    

Federal -$                 485,222$         -$                 5,063,154$     -$                 
State 3,198,392$     2,504,950$     1,788,922$     4,843,442$     2,041,175$     
CVTA -$                 5,353,750$     -$                 -$                 5,353,750$     
Richmond -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 
Henrico -$                 -$                 1,027,001$     -$                 1,047,382$     
Chesterfield 85,657$           100,091$         62,216$           -$                 -$                 
Petersburg 16,667$           16,667$           -$                 33,334$           16,667$           
VCU -$                 -$                 668,456$         212,500$         -$                 
Other 78,981$           76,518$           144,769$         71,411$           653,613$         
Reserve Transfer into Revenue -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 
Actual/ Expected Revenues 3,379,697$     8,537,198$     3,691,364$     10,223,841$   9,112,586$     

Conservative Excess/(Deficiency) 7,205,277$     7,179,984$     3,420,175$     3,114,542$     6,098,060$     

Reserve Monthly Use for Cash Flow -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 
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Beginning Balance @ September 30, 2022 28,087,724.75$     

Receipts:
October 31, 2022 GRTC 15% Funds Distribution - Month of September 2022 2,595,498.47$        

GRTC 15% Funds Distribution - Month of October 2022
GRTC 15% Funds Distribution - Month of November 2022

October 31, 2022 Interest Income LGIP EM- October 2022 36,370.34$             
October 31, 2022 October 2022 LGIP EM Share unrealized gain/(loss) (18,434.21)$            

Interest Income LGIP EM- November 2022
November 2022 LGIP EM Share unrealized gain/(loss)
Interest Income LGIP EM- December 2022
December 2022 LGIP EM Share unrealized gain/(loss)

 2,613,434.60$        

Uses:
Costs incurred in preparing GRTC Regional Public Transportation Plan -$                          

Costs incurred in preparing GRTC Micromobility Plan (10,942.04)$            

GRTC Operating and Capital Expense
GRTC Operating Expense Qtr 2 FY2023 Draw (5,353,750.00)$      
GRTC Capital Expense Qtr 2 FY2023 Local Share Draw (101,855.75)$          

Subtotal GRTC Operating and Capital Expense (5,455,605.75)$      

Ending Balance @ October 31, 2022 25,234,611.56$     

Fund Balance Composition @ October 31, 2022
Unrestricted Funds -$                          
Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2021 Regional Public Transportation Plan preparation 22,250.69$             
Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2022 Regional Public Transportation Plan preparation 200,000.00$           
Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2022 Regional On Demand Micromobility Study 35,354.73$             
Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2023 Regional Public Transporation Plan preparation 100,000.00$           
Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2023 On Demand Micromobility Study 100,000.00$           
Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2023/FY2024 GRTC Operating and Capital Expenses 24,777,006.14$     

25,234,611.56$     

CVTA Funds:
Balance @ October 31, 2022 in Wells Fargo 7,151,154.80$        
Balance @ October 31, 2022 in LGIP EM 18,083,456.76$     

25,234,611.56$     

Wells Fargo Balance at October 31, 2022 7,151,154.80$        

Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2021 Regional Public Transportation Plan preparation 22,250.69$             
Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2022 Regional Public Transportation Plan preparation 200,000.00$           
Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2022 Regional On Demand Micromobility Study 35,354.73$             
Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2023 Regional Public Transporation Plan preparation 100,000.00$           
Restricted Funds: GRTC FY2023 On Demand Micromobility Study 100,000.00$           
Surplus - Available for Investment 6,693,549.38$        

GRTC Transit System
CVTA Special Fund Quarterly Report

For the Quarter Ended December 31, 2022
Data through October 31, 2022
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GRTC TRANSIT SYSTEM 
Board Committee Report 

 
 

Meeting Date: November 15, 2022  
Item Title: Personnel Committee Report  
 

 
 

MOTION: 
 

I move that the Personnel Committee of GRTC’s Board of Directors hold a closed 
meeting pursuant to section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia for the discussion and 
consideration of prospective candidates for employment as Chief Executive Officer of the 
Greater Richmond Transit Company. 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING: 

 

WHEREAS. The Personnel Committee of the Board of Directors of GRTC has convened 
in closed meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance 
with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act: and  

 

WHEREAS Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the 
Committee that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law: 

 

NOW. THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED: 

 

That the Committee hereby certifies that to the best of each member’s knowledge (i) only 
public matters lawfully exempt from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were 
discussed in the closed meeting to which this certifying resolution applies; and (ii) only 
such public business matters as were identified in the motion convening the closed 
meeting were heard, discussed, or considered by the Committee. 

 

WITNESS the following vote of Committee Members: 

 

CERTIFYING:    YES  NO 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Committee Report 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 15, 2022 
Item Title: Finance Committee - RideFinders Annual Financial Audit 
 

  
             

BACKGROUND: 
 
According to RideFinders Amended and Restated Bylaws, the “Corporation’s books 
and financial records should be audited after each fiscal year. The auditors shall 
present the results of the audit to the Board of Directors.” 
 
 

CURRENT STATUS: 
 
Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P conducted RideFinders’ audit of financial 
statements which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the financial statements are 
presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 

Leslie Roberts, CPA, Partner, Brown Edwards & Company, will present the Financial 
Audit report. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Directors accepts RideFinders Annual Report as presented. 
 
 
 

         
Barb Smith, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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RIDEFINDERS 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of RideFinders 
Richmond, Virginia 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RideFinders (a nonprofit organization), which 
comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related statements of 
activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of RideFinders as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report.  We are required to be independent of RideFinders and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits.  We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted  in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about RideFinders’ ability to continue as 
a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of RideFinders’ internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about RideFinders’ ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.   
The grant activity on page 13 is presented for purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of 
the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.  
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, such information is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 6, 
2022, on our consideration of RideFinders’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of RideFinders’ internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
RideFinders' internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
Newport News, Virginia 
October 6, 2022 
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RIDEFINDERS

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

ASSETS
Cash 185,173$                207,407$                
Accounts receivable 5,145                      1,745                      
Grants receivable (Note 5) 126,569                  96,438                    
Due from GRTC (related party) (Note 6) 120,602                  120,602                  
Prepaid expenses 24,565                    8,141                      
Property and equipment, net 947                         1,488                      

Total assets 463,001$                435,821$                

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Accounts payable 61,908$                  40,646$                  
Accrued expenses 47,395                    43,821                    
Deferred rent liability (Note 7) 32,498                    31,165                    

Total liabilities 141,801                  115,632                  

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 321,200                  320,189                  

Total liabilities and net assets 463,001$                435,821$                
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RIDEFINDERS

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE WITHOUT 
  DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Grants: (Note 5)
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation:

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 606,120$                559,228$                
Commonwealth of Virginia -                              5,564                      
Mobility Program 57,271                    37,882                    

City of Richmond 7,500                      7,500                      
Chesterfield County 7,500                      7,500                      
Henrico County 7,500                      7,500                      
Hopewell 500 -                              

Total grants 686,391                  625,174                  

Transit tickets and other revenue 7,739 12,525                    

Total public support and revenue without 
donor restrictions 694,130                  637,699                  

EXPENSES (Notes 8 and 9)
Program expenses 551,561                  492,255                  
Supporting expenses 141,558                  135,680                  

Total expenses 693,119                  627,935                  

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 1,011                      9,764                      

NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 320,189                  310,425                  

End of year 321,200$                320,189$                
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RIDEFINDERS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets 1,011$                    9,764$                    
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
 provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 541                         541               
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (3,400)           6,430            
Grants receivable (30,131)         21,820          
Due from GRTC (related party) -                    25,235          
Prepaid expenses (16,424)         5,421            
Accounts payable 21,262          3,665            
Accrued expenses 3,574            2,491            
Amount held for pass-through grant -                    (66,000)         
Deferred rent liability 1,333            (2,295)           

Net increase (decrease) in cash (22,234)                   7,072                      

CASH
Beginning of year 207,407                  200,335                  

End of year 185,173$                207,407$                
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1. Organization 

RideFinders is non-stock, non-profit corporation established to foster community participation in the Greater 
Richmond, Virginia area in ridesharing activities, including carpools, vanpools, and traditional transit.  
RideFinders is the regional non-profit ridesharing and transportation demand management agency that works 
to move more commuters in fewer vehicles throughout the Central Virginia region to protect air quality and 
increase the efficiency of the region’s transportation network.  RideFinders is a blended component unit of 
Greater Richmond Transit Company (GRTC) and is reported as such in GRTC’s financial statements. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of presentation 

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for nonprofit 
organizations, RideFinders is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to two classes of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor 
restrictions.  The financial statements report amounts separately by class of net assets as follows: 

Net assets without donor restrictions 
Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use in general operations and not subject to donor 
restrictions.  These amounts are currently available at the discretion of RideFinders’ Board of Directors 
for use in operations and those resources invested in property or equipment. 

Net assets with donor restrictions 
Net assets with donor restrictions are subject to donor-imposed restrictions.  Some donor-imposed 
restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events 
specified by the donor.  Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor 
stipulates that resources must be maintained in perpetuity.  RideFinders had no net assets with donor 
restrictions at June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Revenue recognition 

RideFinders derives most of its revenues from contributions and transit voucher sales.  Contributions are 
comprised primarily of grants from federal governmental agencies and other agencies which are included 
within operating revenues on the statements of activities.  Grant funding is recognized as revenue at the time 
when reimbursable expenses are incurred.  Transit voucher sales and other revenues include primarily the 
sale of vanpooling and commercial transit vouchers as well as some retail sales.  Transit voucher sales and 
retail sales are recognized as revenue at the time they are sold. 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates and assumptions. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Cash 

RideFinders cash consists of demand deposit accounts with banking institutions. 

Accounts receivable 

Accounts receivable in the amount of $5,145 and $1,745 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, represent 
amounts due from the sale of transit vouchers.  RideFinders grants credit to customers, substantially all of 
whom are retail businesses and local government agencies, located in the vicinity of the operating location.  
RideFinders provides an allowance for doubtful collections that is based upon a review of outstanding 
receivables, historical collection information, and existing economic conditions.  Delinquent receivables are 
written off based on individual credit evaluation and specific circumstances of the customer.  No allowance 
for doubtful collections has been recorded at June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

Donated services 

No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for donated services since the criteria for 
recognition has not been met under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Property and equipment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost.  Major additions and betterments are capitalized.  The cost of 
maintenance and repairs is expensed in the period incurred.  Depreciation is determined on the straight-line 
method.  Estimated useful lives for purposes of depreciation are three to ten years. 

Functional expenses 

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis 
in the statements of activities.  Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among program and supporting 
services. 

Advertising costs 

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred and were $15,309 and $540 and for 2022 and 2021, 
respectively, and are included in program expenses on the statements of activities. 

Income taxes 

RideFinders is a not-for-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the 
Internal Revenue Code and the tax statutes of the Commonwealth of Virginia; accordingly, the accompanying 
financial statements do not reflect a provision or liability for federal and state income taxes. 

Subsequent events 

In preparing these financial statements, RideFinders has evaluated events and transactions for potential 
recognition or disclosure through October 6, 2022, the date the financial statements were available to be 
issued. 
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3. Liquidity and Availability 

As part of its liquidity management, RideFinders has a policy to structure its financial assets to be available 
as its general expenses, liabilities, and other obligations come due. 

Financial assets available for general expenditure without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, within 
one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following: 

  2022   2021  

 Cash  $ 185,173 $ 207,407 
 Accounts receivable  5,145  1,745 
 Grants receivable  126,569  96,438 
 Prepaid expenses  24,565  8,141 

    $ 341,452 $ 313,731 

4. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consists of the following: 

  2022   2021  

  Furniture and fixtures $ 83,301 $ 83,301 
  Leasehold improvements  31,981  31,981 
  Computer equipment  38,355  38,355 

     153,637  153,637 
  Accumulated depreciation  (152,690)  (152,149) 

    $ 947 $ 1,488 

Total depreciation expense allocated among program and supporting services was $541 for both 2022 and 
2021. 

5. Grants 

Grants by the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation (VDRPT) provide for reimbursement 
of certain qualified expenditures incurred during the fiscal year.  The grants are renewable on an annual basis.  
Grant revenues are recognized in the period in which the related expenditures are incurred.  The VDRPT 
grants represent the pass-through of Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) grants from the 
Department of Transportation - Federal Highway Administration.  Future CMAQ funding may be reduced 
due to changes in the funding allocation process.  However, RideFinders is working with other local 
transportation organizations to help ensure funding is maintained at an adequate level.  Total grant revenues 
were 99% and 98% of total revenues for 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Grants receivable in the amount of $126,569 and $96,438 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, are due to 
be collected within one year. 
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6. Related Party Transactions 

RideFinders has various transactions with GRTC.  The amounts in the accompanying financial statements 
related to GRTC are presented below: 

  2022   2021  

  Due from GRTC $ 120,602 $ 120,602 

  Accounts payable $ 40,515 $ 37,762 

  Payroll and related expenses $ 509,093 $ 483,425 

Effective January 1, 1998, all RideFinders’ employees became GRTC employees.  RideFinders and GRTC 
entered into an employee lease agreement whereby RideFinders leases its employees from GRTC. 

7. Leases 

On August 8, 2011, RideFinders entered into a lease agreement for office facilities in The Ironfronts Building.  
The lease was renewed on February 19, 2019, and extends through June 30, 2029.  Total rent to be paid during 
the initial one hundred twenty five month lease period is $711,780.  Leasehold improvements necessary to 
occupy the leased premises are to be paid by the lessor. 

Straight-line lease expense was $68,331 for June 30, 2022 and 2021, and is included in both program and 
supporting expenses on the statements of activities. 

RideFinders has recorded a deferred rent liability on the statements of net position of $32,498 and $31,165 at 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, which represents the difference between the rent expense recorded and 
actual cash payments made to the lessor. 

Future minimum rent payments under this lease are as follows: 

 Year Ending 
  June 30,  

   2023 $ 62,947 
   2024  70,533 
   2025  72,471 
   2026  74,445 
   2027  76,495 
   Thereafter  153,924 

    $ 510,815 
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8. Functional Expenses and Allocations 

RideFinders had administrative and general expenses of $141,558 and $135,680 during the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, which consists of a 22% allocation of all non-direct program expenses 
based on the amount of time personnel and thus their related equipment and other overhead costs devote to 
general administrative tasks versus the provision of services in accordance with RideFinders’ mission.  
RideFinders had no fundraising expenses during 2022 or 2021. 

9. Natural Expense Classification 

The natural classification of total expenses for the year ended June 30, 2022, is as follows: 

  Program   Supporting   Total  

  Salaries and benefits $ 397,092 $ 112,001 $ 509,093 
  Rent  53,298  15,033  68,331 
  Vanpool assistance  25,177  -  25,177 
  Professional services  15,256  4,303  19,559 
  Insurance  12,907  3,641  16,548 
  Advertising and promotion  15,309  -  15,309 
  Other  11,173  3,151  14,324 
  Transit tickets and other retail  8,400  -  8,400 
  Office supplies and expense  6,102  1,722  7,824 
  Telephone  3,855  1,087  4,942 
  Professional development  1,777  501  2,278 
  Employer based services  793  -  793 
  Depreciation  422  119  541 

    $ 551,561 $ 141,558 $ 693,119 
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9. Natural Expense Classification (Continued) 

The natural classification of total expenses for the year ended June 30, 2021, is as follows: 

  Program   Supporting   Total  

  Salaries and benefits $ 377,072 $ 106,353 $ 483,425 
  Rent  53,298  15,033  68,331 
  Professional services  17,476  4,929  22,405 
  Insurance  10,087  2,845  12,932 
  Other  9,739  2,747  12,486 
  Transit tickets and other retail  9,975  -  9,975 
  Office supplies and expense  7,119  2,008  9,127 
  Telephone  4,701  1,327  6,028 
  Professional development  1,131  319  1,450 
  Employer based services  695  -  695 
  Depreciation  422  119  541 
  Advertising and promotion  540  -  540 

    $ 492,255 $ 135,680 $ 627,935 

10. Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements 

The FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), in February 2016.  This ASU requires the recognition 
of lease assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases under previous 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), which have terms greater than 12 months.  This ASU 
defines a lease as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property, 
plant, or equipment (an identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration.  This ASU retains 
a distinction between finance leases and operating leases.  The result of retaining a distinction between finance 
leases and operating leases in the statements of activities and cash flows is largely unchanged from previous 
GAAP. ASU No. 2016-02 is effective for fiscal year 2023. 

11. Economic Uncertainty 

The COVID-19 coronavirus outbreak is disrupting supply chains and affecting production and sales across a 
range of industries.  The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on Ridefinders’ operational and financial 
performance will depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact 
on customers, employees and vendors all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted.  At this point, the 
extent to which COVID-19 may impact Ridefinders’ future financial condition or results of operations is 
uncertain. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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RIDEFINDERS

SCHEDULES OF GRANT ACTIVITY
Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 Revenue
Federal State Total

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Grants 484,896$          121,224$          606,120$          
Commuter Assistance Program -                       57,271              57,271              

484,896$          178,495$          663,391$          

2021 Revenue
Federal State Total

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Grants 447,382$          111,846$          559,228$          
Commonwealth of Virginia Grants -                       5,564                5,564                
Mobility Program -                       37,882              37,882              

447,382$          155,292$          602,674$          
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER  

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED  
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors of 
   RideFinders 
Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of RideFinders, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related statements of activities 
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued 
our report thereon dated October 6, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered RideFinders' internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of RideFinders' internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of RideFinders' internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that 
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.  
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether RideFinders' financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
Newport News, Virginia 
October 6, 2022 
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REQUIRED COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 

To the Board of Directors of 
   RideFinders 
Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited the financial statements of RideFinders (the “Organization”) for the year ended 
June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated October 6, 2022.  Professional standards require 
that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing 
standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have 
communicated such information in our letter to you dated June 24, 2022.  Professional standards also 
require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by the Organization are described in Note 2 to the financial statements.  No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2022. 
We noted no transactions entered into by the Organization during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 
statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management, and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events, and assumptions about 
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected.  We noted no estimates significant to Ridefinders financial statements. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management 
has corrected all such misstatements.  In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit 
procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the 
financial statements taken as whole. 
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements (Continued) 

Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), (the ‘Standard’) is a new accounting 
standard which will require all long-term leases that fall within the purview of the Standard to be recorded 
on RideFinders’ Statement of Financial Position.  This Standard is not required to be implemented until 
RideFinders’ FY23 financial reporting year, with earlier implementation permitted.  RideFinders elected 
not to early implement for FY22.  However, a standard similar in nature, Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases, is required to be implemented in the FY22 financial statements 
of Greater Richmond Transit Company (GRTC).  For purposes of financial reporting under governmental 
accounting standards, the financial information of RideFinders is included with that of GRTC for year-
end financial reporting.  We anticipate an uncorrected misstatement to the GRTC FY22 financial 
statements resulting from the lack of implementation of this new lease Standard on the part of 
RideFinders.  However, we do not anticipate that RideFinders’ decision to not early implement will be 
material to GRTC’s FY22 financial on RideFinders’ FY23 financial statements and, as such, take no 
exception to RideFinders’ decision not to early implement. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such 
disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter included in Appendix A. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a determination of the 
type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require 
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To 
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Organization’s auditors. However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain 
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information 
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  We compared and 
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
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Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of RideFinders, 
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Sincerely, 

 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
Newport News, Virginia 
October 6, 2022 
 

86



Appendix A 
Management Representation Letter 
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6. Related-party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

 
7. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which U.S. GAAP requires 

adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
 
8. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted 

for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 
 
9. We are in agreement with the adjusting entries you have proposed, and they have been posted to the 

Organization’s accounts. The effects of not early implementing ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 
842) as the Organization is consolidated with the Greater Richmond Transit Company, who is 
required to implement GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, has been determined to have an immaterial 
impact on the financial statements as a whole. 

 
10. Significant estimates and material concentrations have been appropriately disclosed in accordance 

with U.S. GAAP. 
 
11. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Organization is contingently liable, have been 

properly recorded or disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 
 
12. We have provided the planning communication letter to all members of those charged with 

governance as requested.  

Information Provided 

13. We have provided you with: 
a.  Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters. 
b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 
c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to 

obtain audit evidence. 
d. Minutes of the meetings of the governing board or summaries of actions of recent meetings for 

which minutes have not yet been prepared 
 
14. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 

statements. 
 
15. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 

materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 
16. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Organization involving: 

a. Management.  
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control.   
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

 
17. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Organization’s 

financial statements received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, 
regulators, or others. 

 
18. We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions 

of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered 
when preparing financial statements. 
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19. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or unasserted claims 

or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements in accordance 
with U.S. GAAP, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments 
during FY22 or subsequent to year-end through the date of this letter. 

 
20. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or 

deficiencies in financial reporting practices. 
21. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party 

relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including any side agreements. 
 
22. We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to 

the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented. 
 
23. The Organization has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or 

classification of assets and liabilities. 
 
24. We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the 

financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 
 
25. We have complied with all restrictions on resources (including donor restrictions) and all aspects of 

contractual and grant agreements that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the 
event of noncompliance. This includes complying with donor requirements to maintain a specific 
asset composition necessary to satisfy their restrictions.  

 
26. There were no donor-restricted net assets at year-end. 
 
27. The Organization has satisfactory title to all owned assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on 

such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 
 
28. Grant receivables recorded in the financial statement represent valid reimbursements for grant related 

expenditures and have been appropriately reduced to their estimated net realizable value.  
 
29. RideFinders is an exempt organizations under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Any 

activities of which we are aware that would jeopardize the Organization’s tax-exempt status, and all 
activities subject to tax on unrelated business income or excise or other tax, have been disclosed to 
you. All required filings with tax authorities are up-to-date. 

 
30. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the schedules of grant activity in accordance with 

U.S. GAAP, and we believe that the schedules of grant activity, including its form and content is 
fairly presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  The methods of measurement and presentation of 
the schedules of grant activity have not changed from those used in the prior period, and we have 
disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement and 
presentation of the supplementary information. 

 
31. In regards to the preparation of the financial statements and tax return preparation services performed 

by you, we have: 
a. Assumed all management responsibilities. 
b. Overseen the service, by designating an individual, within senior management, who possess 

suitable skill, knowledge, or experience. 
c. Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed. 
d. Accepted responsibility for the results of the services. 
e. Evaluated and maintained internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 
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GRTC Transit System 
Board Committee Report 

 
 
Meeting Date: November 15, 2022 
Item Title: Finance Committee - GRTC Annual Financial Audit 
 

  
             

BACKGROUND: 
 
According to the Articles of Incorporation, Greater Richmond Transit Company’s books 
and financial records shall be audited after each fiscal year.  The Auditors shall present 
the results of the audit to the Board of Directors. 
 
 

CURRENT STATUS: 
 
Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P. conducted Greater Richmond Transit Company’s 
audit of financial statements which comprise the statement of financial position as of 
June 30, 2022, for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the financial 
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Leslie Roberts, CPA, Partner, Brown Edwards & Company, will present the Financial 
Audit report. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board of Directors accepts Greater Richmond Transit Company’s Annual Audit 
report as presented. 
 
 
 

         
Barb Smith, Secretary Date 
GRTC Board of Directors 
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Your Success is Our Focus 
 

701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 • Newport News VA 23606 • 757-873-1033 • Fax 757-873-1106 • www.BEcpas.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors of 

   Greater Richmond Transit Company 

Richmond, Virginia 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Richmond Transit Company and its 

blended component unit as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial 

statements, which collectively comprise the Company’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 

contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 

financial position of Greater Richmond Transit Company and its blended component unit, as of June 30, 2022, 

and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We 

are required to be independent of the Greater Richmond Transit Company and to meet our ethical 

responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 

implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 

events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Greater Richmond Transit 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 

including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinions.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 

Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements 

are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 

influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 

Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include 

examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Greater Richmond Transit Company's internal control.  Accordingly, no such 

opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 

statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 

raise substantial doubt about Greater Richmond Transit Company's ability to continue as a going 

concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 

that we identified during the audit. 

Other Matters 

Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Greater Richmond Transit Company’s 2021 financial statements, and 

we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated 

October 28, 2021.  In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein, as of and for the 

year ended June 30, 2021, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from 

which it was derived.  
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Other Matters (Continued) 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's discussion 

and analysis and net pension liability information and related ratios, including contributions and related notes 

on pages 4 through 8 and 34 through 36 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 

information is the responsibility of management, and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 

required by the Government Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 

reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 

context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 

management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 

with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 

during our audits of the financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 

information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 

or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 

comprise Greater Richmond Transit Company’s basic financial statements.  The schedule of expenditures of 

federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for 

the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information 

is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 

and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the 

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 

including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying  accounting and other records 

used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America.  In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, 

in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27, 2022, 

on our consideration of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  

The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 

reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the Company’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an 

audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Company's internal 

control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 

Newport News, Virginia 

October 27, 2022 
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Herein contained are the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022, for the Greater Richmond 

Transit Company (the “Company”).  This report contains the Company's Statement of Net Position, Statement of 

Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and Statement of Cash Flows.  This information, in conjunction 

with the related notes, provides full disclosure of all the material financial operations of the Company.  These 

statements are the representations of management, who bears the responsibility for their accuracy, completeness 

and fairness.  Management is committed to provide accurate, concise and quality financial information to the 

governmental supporters, residential users of our services, and to all other interested parties.  Management believes 

the data, as presented, is accurate in all material respects, and fairly sets forth the financial position and results of 

operations of the Company and makes disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain a well-informed 

understanding of the financial affairs of the Company. 

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued a Statement titled, Basic Financial 

Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments.  This statement, known 

as the "Reporting Model" statement, affects the way the Company prepares and presents financial information.  The 

statement established the current requirements and reporting model for the annual financial reports of state and local 

governments.  The Statement was developed to make annual reports easy to understand and useful to the people 

who use governmental financial information to make decisions.  The following are required by the statement: 

Statement of Net Position 

This statement is designed to display the financial position of the Company.  This statement reports all assets, 

including capital assets and infrastructure, and liabilities of the Company. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

This statement reports revenues and expenses in a format that focuses on the entire operating results of the 

Company.  Other non-operating revenues, operating contributions and capital asset transactions are also included 

in this statement. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 

This statement shows the actual cash inflows and outflows of the Company using the direct method of presentation. 

Management's discussion and analysis regarding the results of operations and financial position as of June 30, 2022 

and 2021, and for the years then ended follows. 

Results of Operations 

  2022   2021  

 Governmental purchased service $ 200,000 $  5,313,232 

 Charter revenue  17,955  2,655 

 Special service revenue  1,417,756  842,132 

 Advertising revenue  731,578  827,821 

 Total operating revenues  2,367,289  6,985,840 

 Salaries and wages  25,963,297   25,383,138 

 Employee benefits and payroll taxes  12,430,763   22,193,917 

 Fees and services  1,879,506  1,495,246 

 Materials and supplies  7,012,377  6,429,058 

 Utilities  674,447   614,358 

 Insurance  1,710,330  1,743,246 

 Purchased transportation services  5,896,074  4,769,143 

 Other   1,193,497  997,906 

 COVID-19 expenses  2,018,052  1,651,006 

 Depreciation and amortization  10,029,306   9,910,735 

 Total operating expenses  68,807,649  75,187,753 

 Operating loss  (66,440,360)  (68,201,913) 

 Other non-operating revenues  30,438   428,349 

 Operating contributions  62,107,100  50,471,907 

 Capital grant contributions  18,359,898  1,562,106 

 Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets  75,084   (21,155) 

 Change in net position  14,132,160  (15,760,706) 

 Net position, beginning of year  26,568,150  42,328,856 

 Net position, end of year $ 40,700,310 $ 26,568,150 
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Results of Operations 

The Company's results of operations for the year ended June 30, 2022, reflect an increase in total net position of 

$14,132,160. 

All services provided by the Company are dependent upon the availability of operating revenues, non-operating 

revenues, operating contributions and capital grant contributions.  Operating revenues include governmental 

revenues in the form of purchase-of-service agreements with local governments; charter revenue for charter services 

provided through local transportation companies; special service revenue in the form of contract business with local 

universities; and advertising revenue from sales of various bus advertising displays.   

With the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, ridership decreased between 30% to 40% overall from 2019 

levels.  During FY 2022, ridership recovered to approximately 87% of the pre-pandemic levels.  Understanding that 

a significant portion of riders were essential front-line workers, the Company stopped charging fares in March 2020 

and continued with zero fares throughout FY 2022.  The Company has utilized increased levels of State Operating 

Contributions (TSDAC) to fill the funding void as a result of the zero-fare program and Federal COVID Relief 

funding for incremental expenses related to the pandemic. 

Operating revenue of $2,367,289 in FY 2022 decreased $4,618,551 from FY 2021.  Governmental purchased 

service revenue decreased in FY 2022 by $5,113,232 a result of funds received from Henrico and Chesterfield 

Counties being recorded as Operating Contributions starting July 1, 2021, due to the Central Virginia Transportation 

Authority legislation changing the nature of funding from these counties.  The demand for charters was up for 

FY 2022 due to increased demands of businesses with the COVID pandemic restrictions being relieved which 

resulted in increases Charter revenue. 

A decrease in operating expenses of $6,380,104 also contributed to the increase in the Company’s net position.  The 

decrease in operating expenses is primarily due to decreased employee benefits and payroll taxes of $8,326,538, 

due to a decrease in recognized pension expense in FY 2022 due to the increased contribution levels for both the 

employee and employer into the Old Dominion Transit Employees Disability and Retirement Plan as outlined in 

the current Collective Bargaining Agreement.  Based upon the increased contribution levels, certain assumptions in 

the actuarial valuation were revised which resulted in the decrease in net pension liability recognized in FY 2022. 

Employee benefits and payroll taxes decreased in FY 2022 by $9,763,154, due to the reduction in recognized 

pension expense noted above COVID-19 expenses increased in FY 2022 by $360,046 due to price increases driven 

by market conditions and inflation. 
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Results of Operations (Continued) 

Purchased transportation costs increased in FY 2022 by $1,126,931 due to increased demand coming out of the 

pandemic.  Specialized service includes the paratransit (CARE) service, Care on Demand, as well as the welfare-

to-work (CVAN) service.  GRTC provided an optional premium service “Care on Demand” that supports the 

paratransit eligible participant to book their services the same day with singular occupancy for their trip.  This 

service reduces the overall cost per trip and was a portion of the cause for the decreased expenses.  However, the 

primary cause of decreased expenses was the result of reduced demand due to the COVID pandemic.  Demand for 

CARE service was at approximately 76% of its pre-pandemic levels during this period which resulted in a reduction 

in expenses.  This was offset by using specialized services to support fixed route services during the pandemic in 

order to reduce passenger load per vehicle. 

Other non-operating revenues include interest on cash temporarily idle during the year that is invested in a highly 

liquid investment portfolio with the Virginia Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) and other income not part 

of the ordinary income from operations.  Other non-operating revenues decreased in FY 2022 by $397,911, 

primarily due to the receipt of FFCRA Credits in FY 2021. 

Operating contributions, which accounts for approximately 90% in FY 2022 and 67% in FY 2021 of operating 

expenses, respectively, came directly from various governmental grant subsidies from the Central Virginia 

Transportation Authority, Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation (State), Federal Transit 

Administration (FTA), City of Richmond, and other local organizations.  Funding from the Federal Government 

decreased by $19,614,908 in FY 2022.  The significant shift to Operating Contributions from Operating Revenues, 

as well as the shift in funding sources is due to FY 2022 being the first year reflecting funding under the Central 

Virginia Transportation Authority legislation. During FY 2021,  Federal COVID Relief funding was utilized to 

support a portion of operating expenses that were previously funded from fare revenue and higher levels of operating 

contributions and purchased transportation funding from the local partners.  Capital grants and contributions are 

used to purchase nearly all capital assets of the Company and include funding from the Federal Transit 

Administration, Central Virginia Transportation Authority, City of Richmond, and the Virginia Department of Rail 

and Public Transportation.  Capital grants and contributions increased in FY 2022 by $16,797,792 as a result of 

purchases of rolling stock and investments in infrastructure. 

The increase in net position of $14,132,160 includes $10,029,306 in noncash operating expenses relating to 

depreciation and amortization recorded in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 
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Results of Operations (Continued) 

Financial Position 

  2022   2021  

 Current and other assets $ 64,673,506 $ 43,499,743 

 Capital assets  76,135,267  68,543,722 

 Total assets  140,808,773  112,043,465 

 Deferred outflows  17,313,743   26,724,818 

 Current liabilities  16,527,984   9,048,991 

 Long-term liabilities  37,160,496   80,451,740 

 Total liabilities  53,688,480  89,500,731 

 Deferred inflows  63,773,726   22,699,402 

 Net investment in capital assets  70,318,127  68,543,722 

 Restricted  3,893,177   2,719,786 

 Unrestricted  (33,510,994)  (44,695,358) 

 Net position $ 40,700,310 $ 26,568,150 

Financial Position 

Current and other assets increased by $21,173,763 primarily due to receipt of distributions from Central Virginia 

Transportation Authority (CVTA) to be expended in accordance with the approved Regional Public Transportation 

Plan for FY 2023 and due to increased grants receivable balances due to the purchases of rolling stock.  Capital assets 

increased by $7,591,545, primarily due to the purchases of rolling stock offset by annual depreciation and 

amortization of our capital assets.  Current liabilities increased by $7,478,993 due to higher accounts payable due to 

the timing of  capital purchases at the end of the fiscal year.  Long-term liabilities decreased by $43,291,244, primarily 

due to the change in pension liability. 

Requests for Information 

The financial report is designated to provide our customers, investors and creditors with general overview of GRTC’s 

finances and to show the Company’s accountability for the money it receives.  Questions concerning any of the 

information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Chief 

Financial Officer, 301 East Belt Boulevard, Richmond, Virginia 23224. 
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2022

For Comparative

Purposes Only
2022 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) 43,087,758$           25,070,127$           

Receivables:

Grants (Note 4) 10,633,697          6,977,619            

Trade 188,996               318,936               

Other 500,950               1,153,176            

Total  receivables 11,323,643             8,449,731               

Allowance for doubtful accounts (43,408)               (15,718)               

Net receivables 11,280,235             8,434,013               

Prepaid expenses 759,323                  597,172                  

Total current assets 55,127,316             34,101,312             

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 3 and 5) 2,719,786            2,719,786            

OTHER ASSETS

Materials and supplies 1,053,438               905,679                  

Cash and cash equivalents, board-designated (Notes 3 and 8) 5,772,966               5,772,966               

Total other assets 6,826,404               6,678,645               

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET (Note 5) 76,135,267             68,543,722             

Total assets 140,808,773           112,043,465           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension deferrals (Note 6) 17,313,743             26,724,818             

Total assets and deferred outflows 158,122,516$         138,768,283$         

(Continued)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2022

For Comparative

Purposes Only
2022 2021

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 8,479,442$             1,663,453$             

Accrued expenses:

Salaries and wages 2,378,751               1,791,780               

Payroll taxes 240,310                  186,856                  

Retirement contribuitons 259,980                  211,533                  

Accrued uninsured accident claims (Note 7) 330,825                  172,475                  

Other accrued expenses 1,496,713               1,252,756               

Compensated absences 716,400                  603,116                  

Unearned revenue 128,142                  81,482                    

Grant funding received in advance:

Federal 39,028                    39,028                    

State 280,318                  315,996                  

Local 1,619,554               2,171,995               

Note payable, City of Richmond 543,100                  543,100                  

Other post-employment benefits (Note 13) 15,421                    15,421                    

Total current liabilities 16,527,984             9,048,991               

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Net pension liability (Note 6) 37,160,496             80,451,740             

Total liabilities 53,688,480             89,500,731             

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension deferrals (Note 6) 38,006,268             6,373,516               

Deferred revenue - Central Virginia Transit Authority

(CVTA) funds (Note 18) 25,727,458             16,325,886             

Total deferred inflows of resources 63,733,726             22,699,402             

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 70,318,127             68,543,722             

Restricted, capital projects (Notes 3 and 5) 2,719,786               2,719,786               

Restricted, CVTA (Note 19) 1,173,391               -                              

Unrestricted (33,510,994)            (44,695,358)            

Total net position 40,700,310             26,568,150             

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position 158,122,516$         138,768,283$         

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Year Ended June 30, 2022

For Comparative

Purposes Only
2022 2021

OPERATING REVENUES

Governmental purchased service 200,000$                5,313,232$             

Charter 17,955                    2,655                      

Special service 1,417,756               842,132                  

Advertising 731,578                  827,821                  

Total operating revenues 2,367,289               6,985,840               

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 25,963,297             25,383,138             

Employee benefits and payroll taxes 12,430,763             22,193,917             

Fees and services 1,879,506               1,495,246               

Materials and supplies 7,012,377               6,429,058               

Utilities 674,447                  614,358                  

Insurance and provision for uninsured accident claims 1,710,330               1,743,246               

Purchased transportation services (Note 12) 5,896,074               4,769,143               

Other 1,193,497               997,906                  

COVID-19 expense 2,018,052               1,651,006               

Depreciation and amortization 10,029,306             9,910,735               

Total operating expenses 68,807,649             75,187,753             

Operating loss (66,440,360)            (68,201,913)            

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Operating contributions:

Federal Transit Administration 3,578,914               3,825,786               

Federal Transit Administration CARES funds 3,220,435               25,883,499             

Federal Transit Administration CRRSAA funds 3,295,028               -                              

City of Richmond 7,695,152               7,965,184               

County of Henrico 3,989,861 7,500                      

County of Chesterfield 1,173,929 7,500                      

Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation 18,295,978             12,028,253             

Virginia Department of Rail and Public 

  Transportation - CMAQ 663,391                  602,674                  

Central Virginia Transportation Authority Funds (Note 18) 19,362,968             -                              

Other local organizations, matching contributions 831,444                  151,511                  

Total operating contributions 62,107,100             50,471,907             

(Continued)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Year Ended June 30, 2022

For Comparative

Purposes Only
2022 2021

Capital transactions:

Capital grants and contributions 18,359,898$           1,562,106$             

Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 75,084                    (21,155)                   

Total capital transactions 18,434,982             1,540,951               

Other income (expense):

Interest income 46,163                    52,021                    

Other income (expense) (15,725)                   376,328                  

Total other income 30,438                    428,349                  

Total nonoperating revenues 80,572,520             52,441,207             

Change in net position 14,132,160             (15,760,706)            

NET POSITION

Beginning of year 26,568,150             42,328,856             

End of year 40,700,310$           26,568,150$           

(Continued)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2022

For Comparative

Purposes Only
2022 2021

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from passengers -$                            185,527$                

Governmental purchased service receipts 200,000                  5,607,249               

Other receipts 2,078,015               1,551,444               

Payments to employees (25,263,042)            (24,877,887)            

Payment to employee benefits and payroll taxes (14,494,473)            (13,390,514)            

Payments to suppliers and others (19,374,843)            (20,127,721)            

Net cash used by operating activities (56,854,343)            (51,051,902)            

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income 46,163                    52,021                    

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital assets (11,805,727)            (1,562,108)              

Proceeds from disposal and sale of capital assets 77,100                    341,992                  

Capital contributions Central Virgina Transportation Authority 488,578                  598,642                  

Capital grants related local contributions 18,329,528             1,562,106               

Net cash provided by capital financing activities 7,089,479               940,632                  

NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Operating contributions from federal, state, and local sources 39,476,095             51,132,729             

Operating contributions from Central Virgina 

Transportation Authority 28,275,962             15,727,244             

Miscellaneous nonoperating revenue (expenses) (15,725)                   376,328                  

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 67,736,332             67,236,301             

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 18,017,631             17,177,052             

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Beginning of year 33,562,879             16,385,827             

End of year 51,580,510$           33,562,879$           

SUMMARY OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents, current 43,087,758$           25,070,127$           

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted 2,719,786               2,719,786               

Cash and cash equivalents, board designated 5,772,966               5,772,966               

51,580,510$           33,562,879$           

(Continued)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2022

For Comparative

Purposes Only
2022 2021

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH

USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating loss (66,440,360)$          (68,201,913)$          

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

used by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 10,029,306             9,910,735               

Pension expense, net of employer contributions (2,247,417)              7,675,027               

Change in current assets and liabilities:

Receivables, trade and other, net (135,934)                 479,544                  

Prepaid expenses (162,151)                 546,508                  

Materials and supplies (147,759)                 (25,147)                   

Accounts payable 998,849                  (2,224,436)              

Accrued expenses 1,091,179               1,059,505               

Compensated absences 113,284                  (150,561)                 

Unearned revenue 46,660                    (121,164)                 

Net cash used by operating activities (56,854,343)$          (51,051,902)$          

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital purchases included in accounts payable at year-end 5,817,140$             -$                            

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 

 

 

(Continued) 

15 

 Organization 

Reporting entity 

Greater Richmond Transit Company (the Company or GRTC) is a public service corporation incorporated on 

April 12, 1973, and organized to provide mass transportation services to the Richmond Metropolitan area.  

The Company began operations on September 1, 1973, by purchasing the assets of the Virginia Transit 

Company.  The Company is a joint venture between the City of Richmond and County of Chesterfield, 

Virginia to provide mass transportation for passengers on a regional basis and associated para-transit service 

mandated by the Americans with Disabilities Act for the purposes of providing continuous services within 

and between the jurisdictions of the City of Richmond, Chesterfield County and Henrico County.  The 

Company is governed by a nine-member board of directors; three of which are appointed by the City of 

Richmond, three of which are appointed by Chesterfield County, and three of which are appointed by Henrico 

County. 

The accompanying annual financial report includes the financial activities of the Company, and its blended 

component unit, Ridefinders.  Financial information for the Company and the blended component unit is 

accounted for in the accompanying financial statements in accordance with principles defining the 

governmental reporting entity adopted by the Government Accounting Standards Board. 

Blended Component Unit 

Greater Richmond Transit Company is stock, non-profit corporation established to foster community 

participation in the Greater Richmond, Virginia area in ridesharing activities, including carpools, vanpools, 

and traditional transit.  Ridefinders is the regional non-profit ridesharing and transportation demand 

management agency that works to move more commuters in fewer vehicles throughout the Central Virginia 

region to protect air quality and increase the efficiency of the region’s transportation network.  The Company 

and Ridefinders have a financial and operational relationship which requires that Ridefinders’ financial 

statements be blended into the Company’s financial statements.  Condensed combining financial statements 

for the Company and its blended component unit are presented in Note 16. 

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies affecting the significant elements of the financial statements are as follows: 

• The financial statements are reported and accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus 

and the accrual basis of accounting wherein all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of 

these activities are included in the statement of net position. 

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles (GAAP).  The Company applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 

pronouncements. 

In June 1999, the GASB issued a statement titled, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion 

and Analysis - for State and Local Governments.  This statement, known as the "Reporting Model" statement, 

affects the way the Company prepares and presents financial information.  The statement established new 

requirements and a new reporting model for the annual financial reports of state and local governments.  The 

statement was developed to make annual reports easy to understand and useful to the people who use 

governmental financial information to make decisions and includes: 
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

The reporting model statement requires that financial statements be accompanied by a narrative introduction 

and analytical overview of the government's financial activities in the form of “management’s discussion and 

analysis" (MD&A).  This analysis is similar to analysis the private sector provides in their annual reports. 

Statement of net position 

This statement is designed to display the financial position of the governmental entity.  Governments report 

all assets, including capital assets and infrastructure, in the statement of net position. 

Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position 

This statement reports revenues and expenses in a format that focuses on the entire operating results of the 

governmental entity.  Capital asset transactions are included in this statement. 

Statement of cash flows 

This statement is displayed using a direct format whereby actual cash inflows and outflows are presented. 

Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses reported during that period.  Actual results 

could differ from those estimates and assumptions. 

Revenues and expenses 

Passenger fares, charter, special service and advertising revenues are recorded as revenue at the time such 

services are performed.  Revenues from governmental grants are earned when the expenses related to the 

grants are incurred. 

Governmental purchased service is comprised of funds received from the City of Petersburg to subsidize the 

operation of express bus routes. 

The Company reports as nonoperating revenues and expenses amounts arising from capital asset transactions, 

operating grant contributions from governmental entities, investment related transactions and miscellaneous 

nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Operating losses are subsidized in part by operating grants from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), 

the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation (VDRPT), the City of Richmond, the County of 

Chesterfield and the County of Henrico.  The funding from VDRPT is for fuel, tires, maintenance parts and 

supplies and administrative expenses.  Among other requirements of the FTA grants, state and local 

governments must provide a certain matching share of funds and/or support (as defined by FTA guidelines) 

for operating assistance.  The FTA, state and city grants are subject to financial and compliance audits.  Such 

audits could result in requests for reimbursement to the granting agency for expenditures disallowed under 

the terms of the grants. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include short term, highly liquid investments with initial maturities of three months 

or less.  Designated cash at June 30, 2022, represents funds reserved by the Board of Directors for a 

contingency fund for unforeseen events.  Restricted cash at June 30, 2022, is comprised of funds restricted 

for future eligible capital projects as required by FTA. 

Trade receivables 

Trade accounts receivable primarily represent balances owed for advertising and marketing with the 

Company and bus services within the Richmond area and part of Chesterfield and Henrico counties.  The 

Company grants credit to customers, substantially all of whom are businesses located in the vicinity of the 

operating locations.  The Company provides an allowance for doubtful accounts that is based upon a review 

of outstanding receivables, historical collection information, and existing economic conditions.  Delinquent 

receivables are written off based on individual credit evaluation and specific circumstances of the customer. 

Materials and supplies 

Materials and supplies, consisting primarily of replacement parts for transit equipment, are stated at cost using 

the moving-average cost method wherein after each goods acquisition, the average unit cost of an item is 

recomputed by adding the cost of the newly acquired goods or units to the cost of the units already in 

inventory. 

Capital assets 

The Company's capital assets with useful lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost.  The 

Company generally capitalizes assets with cost of $5,000 or more as purchase and construction outlays occur.  

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful 

lives are not capitalized.  Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method.  When capital assets 

are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, 

and the resulting gain or loss is recorded as a capital transaction on the statement of revenues, expenses, and 

changes in net position. 

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  Recoverability of assets held and used 

is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to undiscounted expected cash flows.  Future 

events could cause the Company to conclude that impairment indicators exist and that long-lived assets may 

be impaired. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Capital assets (Continued) 

Depreciable assets are depreciated over the following estimated useful lives: 

   Buildings 10 to 30 years 

   Buses, vans, vehicles 4-12 years 

   Bus stop and parking facilities  5-15 years 

   Shop and garage equipment  4-30 years 

   Office furniture and equipment 5 years 

   Software 4-5 years 

   Bus communication and other equipment 4-12 years 

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 

In addition to assets and liabilities, the statements that present net position report a separate section for 

deferred outflows/inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net 

position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until 

then. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and 

so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Company has the following 

items that qualify for reporting in these categories: 

• Contributions subsequent to the measurement date for pensions are always a deferred outflow; this will 

be applied to the net pension liability in the next fiscal year. 

• Differences between expected and actual experience for economic/demographic factors in the 

measurement of the total pension liability.  This difference will be recognized in pension expense over 

the expected average remaining service life of all employees provided with benefits in the plan and 

may be reported as a deferred inflow or outflow as appropriate. 

• Difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments. This difference will be 

recognized in pension expense over the closed five-year period and may be reported as a deferred 

outflow or inflow as appropriate. 

• Differences resulting from changes in assumptions on pension plan investments. These differences will 

be recognized in pension expense over the estimated remaining service life of employees subject to the 

plan. 

• Revenues deferred as asset recognition criteria have not yet been met.  Deferred revenues represents 

resources that are received that are attributable to a future period.  During 2022, the Company received 

funding from the newly created Central Virginia Transit Authority (CVTA) that is to be used to capital 

and operation needs for future fiscal years.  The total is reflected as deferred revenue on the statement 

of net position.  See Note 18 for additional information. 

Unearned revenue 

Unearned revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which 

revenue recognition criteria have not been met. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Grants 

Grant funding received in advance represents grant assets received but for which revenue recognition criteria 

has not yet been met (i.e. funds have not yet been spent for grant-related purposes). 

Note payable 

The note payable - City of Richmond is a non-interest bearing unsecured note, which is due on demand.  At 

June 30, 2022, the fair value of the indebtedness approximates the amount recorded in the financial 

statements. 

Net position 

Net position is the difference between assets/deferred outflows of resources and liabilities / deferred inflows 

of resources.  Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets, less accumulated depreciation less 

any outstanding debt related to acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

When net position resources are available for a specific purpose in more than one classification, it is the 

Company’s policy to use the most restrictive funds first in the following order: restricted and unrestricted as 

they are needed. 

Advertising costs 

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred. 

Income taxes 

The Company, as an entity formed to serve the City of Richmond and Chesterfield County (governmental 

entities), is exempt from federal and state income taxes. 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, checking accounts, and the Virginia Local Government 

Investment Pool (LGIP).  All investment accounts maintained by the Company must abide by the general 

investment criteria established by the Commonwealth of Virginia for public funds. 

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  

Custodial Credit Risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Company's deposits may 

not be returned or the Company will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside 

party.  Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Company's investment 

in a single issuer.  Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair 

value of an investment.  Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest 

rate changes.  Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair 

value of an investment.  In order to minimize its exposure to all five of these risks, the Company has a policy 

of complying with the investment guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Virginia for public funds. 

 

114



GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 

 

 

(Continued) 

20 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued) 

At June 30, 2022, the carrying value of the Company's deposits with banks and LGIP was $51,893,693.  All 

deposits of the Company are covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and collateralized 

in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act (the “Act”) Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the 

Code of Virginia.  Under the Act, banks and savings institutions holding public deposits in excess of the 

amount insured by the FDIC must pledge collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board.  

Financial institutions may choose between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that 

choice, will pledge collateral that ranges in the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits.  Accordingly, 

all deposits are considered fully collateralized. 

The carrying value of the Company's cash equivalents consists of the following at June 30, 2022: 

  Virginia Local Government Investment Pool   $ 32,553,814 

  Bank deposits (checking accounts)    18,908,360 

  Petty cash funds    118,336 

  Total cash equivalents    51,580,510 

  Restricted for Future Eligible Capital Projects as Required by  

    FTA - represents the federal interest in the sale proceeds of  

   the former maintenance and administrative facility (Note 5)    (2,719,786) 

  Board designated (Note 8)    (5,772,966) 

  Unrestricted and undesignated   $ 43,087,758 

 Grants Receivable 

Federal, state and local grants receivable consist of the following at June 30, 2022: 

  Department of Transportation - Federal Transit Administration   $ 6,144,802 

  Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation    4,488,096 

   Total grants receivable   $ 10,633,697 

 Capital Assets 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, upon completion of the new maintenance and administrative facility, 

the Company recorded an asset impairment loss in the amount of $1,100,000, which represented the 

remaining book value of the old maintenance and administrative facility.  During the subsequent years, the 

asset impairment loss increased $1,002,509 and totaled $2,102,509 at June 30, 2015.  During the year ended 

June 30, 2016, upon sale of the old maintenance and administrative facility, the Company removed the book 

value of the old maintenance and administrative facility and removed the impairment loss reserve in the 

amount of $2,102,509.  In connection with the sale, in accordance with FTA regulations, $2,719,786 of the 

sale proceeds represents the federal interest in the proceeds and is restricted for future eligible capital projects. 
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5. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022, was as follows: 

  Balance at      Transfers   Balance at 

  June 30,      and   June 30, 

  2021   Additions   Disposals   2022  

Capital assets not subject to depreciation: 

  Land $ 2,644,056 $ - $ - $ 2,644,056 

  Construction in progress  372,643  167,908  -  540,551 

 Total capital assets not subject  

  to depreciation  3,016,699  167,908  -  3,184,607 

 Capital assets subject to depreciation: 

  Buildings  53,505,971  122,275  -  53,628,246 

  Buses, vans, vehicles  72,024,076  16,100,225  (6,159,094)  81,965,207 

  Bus stop and parking facilities  4,425,051  105,789  -  4,530,840 

  Shop and garage equipment  986,054  76,731  (7,358)  1,055,427 

  Office furniture and equipment  8,841,417  -  -  8,841,417 

  Software  2,130,120  932,415  -  3,062,535 

  Bus communications and other  

   equipment  8,865,900  117,524  -  8,983,424 

 Total capital assets subject  

  to depreciation 150,778,589   17,454,959  (6,166,452)  159,004,561 

 Accumulated depreciation: 

  Buildings  (21,057,936)  (1,765,986)  -  (22,823,922) 

  Buses, vans, vehicles  (45,079,424)  (6,466,520)  6,157,078  (45,388,866) 

  Bus stop and parking facilities  (3,079,511)  (322,631)  -  (3,402,142) 

  Shop and garage equipment  (711,704)  (30,718)  7,358  (735,064) 

  Office furniture and equipment  (8,563,984)  (132,730)  -  (8,696,714) 

  Software  (1,439,806)  (482,662)  -  (1,922,468) 

  Bus communication and other 

   equipment  (5,319,201)  (828,060)  -  (6,147,261) 

 Total accumulated depreciation  (85,251,566)  (10,029,306)  6,164,436  (89,716,436) 

 Total capital assets subject to 

  depreciation, net  65,527,023  7,425,653  (2,016)  72,950,659 

 Total capital assets, net $ 68,543,722 $ 7,593,561 $ (2,016) $ 76,135,267 
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 Retirement Plans 

The operating company, Old Dominion Transit Management Company, has four retirement plans covering 

substantially all employees.  One plan, an Internal Revenue Service Code Section 401(a) deferred 

compensation plan, which is noncontributory and covers qualified salaried employees, is funded as accrued.  

The second and third plans, started during 2002, are contributory Internal Revenue Code Section 457(b) 

deferred compensation plans available to certain eligible employees.  The fourth plan is described in the 

succeeding paragraphs.  The assets of the plans are required to be held in trust.  Based on the plans' 

governmental status, the Company's obligation under the plans is limited to its contributions.  The aggregate 

contributions for these plans were $3,027,275 during the year ended June 30, 2022, and are included in 

employee benefits and payroll taxes on the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 

Plan description 

The fourth plan mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the Old Dominion Transit Employees Disability and 

Retirement Allowance Plan ("the Plan”), is a single-employer defined benefit plan and is maintained pursuant 

to agreements between Old Dominion Transit Management Company and Local 1220 of the Amalgamated 

Transit Union.  The Plan is administered by a committee of four persons, two appointed by the Company and 

two by the Local 1220.  The Plan covers substantially all of the employees covered under the collective 

bargaining agreement between Old Dominion Transit Management Company and Local 1220 who have 

completed 60 days of service, and also includes certain employees who are not members of Local 1220.  

Effective August 1, 2002, the Plan will not cover any person who is not covered by the collective bargaining 

unit represented by Local 1220 and is (1) hired on and after August 1, 2002 or (2) a member of the Plan as 

of September 30, 2002, who, on or before October 31, 2002, irrevocably waived further membership in the 

Plan after September 30, 2002.  Participants are eligible for retirement after either (a) attaining age 55 and 

completing a sufficient period of continuous service with the Company so that the total of their age and their 

length of service is 85 or more or (b) attaining age 62 and completing 5 years of continuous service.  At 

January 1, 2021, there were 336 current active members in the Plan.  At January 1, 2021, 214 retirees and 

beneficiaries were receiving benefits from the Plan.  Any participant with at least five years of continuous 

service who terminated employment may elect to either (a) be paid their accumulated contributions with 

interest or (b) leave their contributions in the fund and become fully vested in the benefits they had accrued 

to the date of termination. 

Benefit formula 

A formula is used to determine monthly benefits upon retirement.  The retirement benefit formula is computed 

as 1.5% of the participant’s highest four-year average monthly compensation multiplied by the number of 

years of the participant’s continuous service, subject to a monthly minimum benefit of $222 for participants 

in the Plan as of October 1, 2000.  Each retirement and disability allowance being paid may be adjusted to 

reflect increases in the consumer price index that have occurred during the preceding year, subject to a 

maximum increase of 4% per year. 
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6. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Status of the Plan as a governmental plan 

By letter dated April 18, 1978, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation determined that the Plan was a 

governmental plan under Title IV of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).  By 

ruling dated May 29, 1979, the Internal Revenue Service determined that the Plan was a governmental plan 

within the meaning of Section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.  By letter dated January 23, 1981, the 

Department of Labor issued an advisory opinion that the Plan was a governmental plan within the meaning 

of Section 3(32) of ERISA.  A governmental plan is not subject to most of the provisions of ERISA. 

Publicly available report  

The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 

supplemental information for the Old Dominion Transit Employees Disability and Retirement Allowance 

Plan.  The financial report may be obtained through management of the Company.  The Plan's fiduciary net 

position disclosed herein has been determined on the same basis as that used by the Plan. 

The Plan's separate financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  Employee and 

employer contributions are recognized as revenues in the period in which employee services are performed.  

Retirement and termination benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with 

the terms of the Plan.  If available, quoted market prices are used to value investments.  Securities traded on 

a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at existing exchange rates.  

Bonds with no quoted market value are generally valued by comparison with comparable securities with 

similar yields and ratings.  Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair 

value.  Appreciation and depreciation on assets held for investment during the year are based on the fair value 

at the end of the Plan year as compared to the fair value at the beginning of the Plan year for investments 

acquired in a previous Plan year.  For investments acquired during the year, appreciation and depreciation are 

calculated by determining the difference between fair value at the end of the Plan year and the cost basis of 

the investments.  Gain or loss on investments disposed of (realized) during the year is calculated by comparing 

the sales proceeds with the cost basis for all investment disposals.  Interest income is recorded on the accrual 

basis. 

Funding policy 

The cost of providing retirement and disability benefits under the Plan is shared between the Company and 

the employee.  The collective bargaining process between the Company and the Local 1220 determines the 

amount of contribution that the employee must contribute for plan benefits.  The portion of such aggregate 

contributions to be contributed by the Company for participants who are not members of the bargaining unit 

represented by Local 1220, is determined by the Company.  In no event, however, may the monthly 

contribution made by any member be less than $25.  Contribution rates are shown below: 
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6. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Funding policy (Continued) 

   Bargained   Non-Bargained  

 Effective Date   Employee   Employer   Employee   Employer  

 October 1, 2017  8.0%   10.0%   4.0%   13.0% 

 April 1, 2018  8.0%   10.0%   4.0%   14.0% 

 July 1, 2018  8.0%   11.0%   4.0%   14.0% 

 October 1, 2018  8.0%   11.5%   4.0%   14.0% 

 March 1, 2019  8.0%   11.5%   4.0%   15.5% 

 October 1, 2019  8.0%   12.0%   4.0%   16.0% 

 March 1, 2021  9.0%   13.0%   4.0%   18.0% 

 October 1, 2021  10.5%   14.0%   10.5%   14.0% 

Contributions are vested after five years of continuous service with the Company (ten years prior to 

October 1, 2000, and fifteen years prior to October 1, 1997). 

Actuarial valuation 

In the latest actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2021, the consulting actuaries, Milliman, Inc., reported a 

total pension liability of $79,282,136.  This accrued liability less the value of the trust fund of $42,121,640 at 

December 31, 2021, results in a net pension liability of $37,160,496.  The fiduciary net position as a 

percentage of the total pension liability was 53.1% at December 31, 2021.  The 2021 annual covered payroll 

was $19,789,787.  The ratio of the net pension liability to annual covered payroll was 187.8% for 2021. 

No Plan provisions have changed since the last actuarial valuation. 
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6. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Changes in net pension liability 

     Plan 

  Total    Fiduciary   Net Pension 

  Liability  Net Position   Liability 

  (a)   (b)   (a) - (b)  

  Balances at December 31, 2020 $ 119,309,604 $ 38,857,864 $ 80,451,740 

  Changes for the year: 

   Service cost  4,470,182  -  4,470,182 

   Interest  3,337,107  -  3,337,107 

   Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses  (515,340)  -  (515,340) 

   Effects of assumptions changes or inputs  (41,539,863)  -  (41,539,863) 

   Contributions, employer  -  2,779,428  (2,779,428) 

   Contributions, employee   -  1,851,601  (1,851,601) 

   Net investment income  -  4,716,698  (4,716,698) 

   Benefit payments, including refunds of employee  

    contributions  (5,779,554)  (5,779,554)  - 

   Administrative expense  -  (304,397)  304,397 

  Net changes  (40,027,468)  3,263,776  (43,291,244) 

  Balances at December 31, 2021 $ 79,282,136 $ 42,121,640 $ 37,160,496 

Actuarial assumptions  

The significant assumptions and other inputs used to measure the total pension liability are as follows: 

  Discount Rate  6.50% 

  Long term expected rate of return, net of investment expense  6.50% 

  Bond buyer general obligation 20-bond municipal bond index  2.06% 

Beginning with 2021, the Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected 

future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the discount rate for calculating 

the total pension liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return applied to benefit payments. 
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6. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Actuarial assumptions (continued) 

Other key actuarial assumptions: 

 Valuation date January 1, 2021 

 Measurement date December 31, 2021 

 Inflation 3.00% 

  Salary increases including inflation 12% per year for participants with less than four years of service 

and service and 4.5% per year for participants with at least four 

years of service 

  Active and healthy inactive mortality Rates from the separate Pub-2010 General Mortality tables for 

employees, retirees, survivors, and disabled participants 

generationally projected using Projection Scale MP-2019. 

  Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 

  Cost of living adjustments None 

  Mortality  Pub-2010 General Mortality tables for employees, retirees, 

survivors, and disabled participants generationally projected using 

Projection Scale MP-2019 

  Termination rate 30% at less than 1 year of service 

    20% between 1 and 2 years of service 

    15% between 2 and 4 years of service 

    4% at 4 year or service or greater 

 Retirement rate 10% at age 55 

   5% at ages 56 to 59 

   10% at ages 60 and 61 

   70% at age 62 

   40% at age 63 

   20% at age 64 

   100% at age 65 

Long-term expected rate of return 

The best estimate range for the long-term expected rate of return was determined by the actuaries by adding 

expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation.  The 

capital market assumptions are per Milliman's investment consulting practice as of December 31, 2021. 
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6. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Long-term expected rate of return (Continued) 

   Long-Term Long-Term 

   Expected Expected 

   Arithmetic Geometric 

   Real Rate Real Rate 

  Asset Class   Index  Allocation of Return of Return 

 US Cash B of A Merrill Lynch 3 month T-bills -0.03% -0.26% -0.26% 

 US Core Fixed Income Bloomberg Barclays Aggregate  20.01% 1.39%  1.28% 

 US Short Bonds Bloomberg Barclays 1-3 Yr Govt/Credit 2.01% 0.24% 0.21% 

 US Government Bonds Bloomberg Barclays Govt   2.52% 0.58%  0.45% 

 U.S.  Securitized Securities Bloomberg US MBS   2.10% 2.03%  1.94% 

 US Municipal Bonds Bloomberg Barclays Muni   0.06% 0.60% 0.50% 

 Non-US Bonds JP Morgan GBI Global xUS   0.33% -0.13% -0.58% 

 US Equity Market Russell 3000   71.35% 5.17% 3.57% 

 Non-US Equity MSCI ACWI xUS NR   1.20% 6.78% 4.94% 

 Global REITS FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed  0.45% 6.05% 3.92% 

 Assumed Inflation-Mean      3.00% 3.00% 

 Assumed Inflation-Standard Deviation      1.23% 1.23% 

 Portfolio Real Mean Return      4.13% 3.27% 

 Portfolio Nominal Mean Return     7.13% 6.38% 

 Portfolio Standard Deviation        12.92% 

 Long-Term Expected Rate of Return       6.50% 

Sensitivity analysis 

According to the actuaries, the following presents the net pension liability of the Company, calculated using 

the discount rate of 6.50%, as well as what the Company’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated 

using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (5.50%) or 1 percentage point higher (7.50%) than the 

current rate. 

  1%   Current   1%  

  Decrease  Discount Rate  Increase  

  5.50%   6.50%   7.50%  

  Total pension liability $ 87,844,244 $ 79,282,136 $ 72,018,377 

  Fiduciary net position  42,121,640  42,121,640  42,121,640 

  Net pension liability $ 45,722,604 $ 37,160,496 $ 29,896,737 
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6. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Depletion date projection 

Effective February 2021, the Company agreed to increase the employee and employer contribution rates. As 

a result of the increase contribution rates, the plan’s fiduciary net position is projected to be sufficient to cover 

benefit payments and administrative expenses.  The increased contribution rates result in the depletion date 

being deferred indefinitely. 

Pension expense and deferred inflows and outflows  

For the year ending June 30, 2022, the Company recognized pension expense of $810,801. 

The deferred inflows and outflows of resources as of June 30, 2022, are as follows: 

  Deferred   Deferred 

  Outflows of   Inflows of 

  Resources   Resources  

  Differences between expected and actual experience $ 2,001,926 $ (1,381,334) 

  Changes of assumptions  13,875,201  (32,956,573) 

  Pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date  1,436,616  - 

  Net difference between projected and actual earnings  -  (3,668,361) 

    $ 17,313,743 $ (38,006,268) 

$1,436,616 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Company’s 

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension 

Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.  Other amounts currently reported as deferred outflows of 

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 

follows: 

 Year Ending 

  December 31  

   2022 $ (2,658,417) 

   2023  (5,241,920) 

   2024  (9,108,524) 

   2025  (5,120,280) 

   2026  - 

Pension plan data 

Information about the Old Dominion Transit Employees Disability and Retirement Allowance Plan is also 

available in the separately issued 2021 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR).  A copy of the 

2021 ACFR may be requested from the plan’s Chief Financial Officer at 301 East Belt Boulevard, 

Richmond, VA, 23224. 
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 Accrued Uninsured Accident Claims 

The Company has joined the Virginia Transit Liability Pool.  Under the pool, the Company has $20,000,000 

liability and excess coverage (with a $350,000 self-insurance retention).  At June 30, 2022, the Company was 

liable for any settlement in excess of $20,000,000.  Additional liability insurance is purchased through 

multiple insurance carriers for up to $10,000,000 per accident.   

The following schedule reflects the activity in accrued uninsured accident claims during the year ended  

June 30, 2022: 

  Balance, June 30, 2020   $ 350,650 

  Provision    56,690 

  Claims paid    (234,865) 

  Balance, June 30, 2021    172,475 

  Provision    468,233 

  Claims paid    (309,883) 

  Balance, June 30, 2022   $ 330,825 

The Company records the provisions for uninsured accident claims based upon management's estimate of the 

total liability for each claim.  Because of the inherent uncertainties in estimating accident claims, it is at least 

reasonably possible that the estimates used will change in the near term. 

 Board Designated Reserves 

The Board of Directors of the Company has designated cash reserves of $5,772,966 at June 30, 2022, for a 

contingency fund. 

 Materials and Supplies Agreements 

The Company obtains tires and tubes for its buses through a three-year agreement with Michelin North 

America, Inc.  (“Michelin”) dated June 1, 2018.  The agreement provided for two one-year option terms.  In 

fiscal year 2021, the Company executed the first one year option to extend the agreement until May 31, 2023.  

Fees are based on a monthly fixed cost and the mileage driven by each bus.  Cost incurred in connection with 

tires and tubes were $442,878 for the year ended June 30, 2022, and are included in materials and supplies 

on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

 Vanpool Program 

The Company furnishes commuter vanpool services through various agreements, all of which are on a month 

to month basis.  The cost of such services to the Company is based on the number of passenger vans provided.  

Cost incurred in connection with commuter vanpool service for the year ended June 30, 2022, were $192,900 

which are included in fees and services expense on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 

position. 
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 Union Contract  

The Company entered into an updated agreement with the Amalgamated Transit Union, Local Union 1220 

(the “Union”), on October 1, 2020, in connection with the Company's transit operators and mechanics.  This 

agreement is effective from October 1, 2020, through September 30, 2023. 

 Purchased Transportation Services 

The Company furnishes specialized transportation services (CARE and CVAN services) for disabled persons 

through an agreement with First Transit dated December 1, 2017.  The initial term of this agreement ended 

November 30, 2020, and the Company is currently exercising annual renewal options.  The current option 

expires November 30, 2022, at which point there will be two remaining one-year renewal options remaining 

on the agreement.  The cost of such services to the Company is based on a fixed cost per revenue hour.  Costs 

incurred in connection with disabled person’s specialized transportation were $5,896,074 for the year ended 

June 30, 2022. 

 Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

The Company provides for short-term post-employment benefit options for health care, vision, and dental 

insurance for terminated employees and dependents solely through the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation 

Act of 1985 (COBRA).  The Company’s Collective Bargaining Unit Agreement and Administrative 

Employee's Handbook do not provide for long-term retiree medical, vision and dental benefits following 

retirement from active employment. 

If a separated employee opts for continuation of healthcare, vision, or dental coverage under COBRA, the 

separated employee pays 100% of the premium for any continued medical, vision or dental coverage.  As of  

June 30, 2022, the number of separated employees who have opted for continuation of coverage is as follows: 

  Number of  

  Former 

  Employees at 

 Coverage Type    June 30, 2022  

  Health Care - EE Only  1 

  Vision - EE Only  1 

  Dental - EE Only  43 

  Dental - EE + Spouse  6 

 Commitments and Contingencies 

The Company, from time to time, is a defendant in civil actions.  The Company intends to vigorously defend 

the claims asserted against it by all claimants.  The ultimate resolution of these matters is not ascertainable at 

this time.  No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements related to these matters. 
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 Ridefinders 

The accompanying financial statements include the amounts of Greater Richmond Transit Co. and its blended 

component unit (Ridefinders).  Effective July 1, 1998, the Board of Directors of the Company became the 

governing board of Ridefinders.  All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been 

eliminated.  Ridefinders was established to foster community participation in the Richmond area in 

ridesharing activities.  Ridefinders issues separately audited financial statements.  Copies of Ridefinders audit 

reports may be obtained from the Company's finance department.  The financial statements of Ridefinders 

are presented as a blended entity in the accompanying financial statements. 

The condensed combining statement of net position of Ridefinders and GRTC at June 30, 2022, is as follows: 

  Ridefinders   GRTC   Total  

  Other assets $ 341,452 $ 64,332,054 $ 64,673,506 

  Capital assets  947  76,134,320  76,135,267 

  Total assets  342,399  140,466,374  140,808,773 

  Deferred outflows of resources  -  17,313,743  17,313,743 

  Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 342,399 $ 157,780,117 $ 158,122,516 

  Current liabilities $ 101,286 $ 16,426,698 $ 16,527,984 

  Long-term liabilities  -  37,160,496  37,160,496 

  Total liabilities  101,286  53,587,194  53,688,480 

  Deferred inflows of resources  -  63,733,726  63,733,726  

  Net investment in capital assets  947  70,317,180  70,318,127 

  Restricted  -  3,893,177  3,893,177 

  Unrestricted  240,166  (33,751,160)  (33,510,994) 

  Net position  241,113  40,459,197  40,700,310 

  Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources  

   and net position $ 342,399 $ 157,780,117 $ 158,122,516 
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15. Ridefinders (Continued)  

The condensed combining statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position of Ridefinders and 

GRTC for the year ended June 30, 2022, is as follows: 

  Ridefinders   GRTC   Total  

  Operating revenues $ 7,739 $ 2,359,550 $ 2,367,289 

  Operating expenses  690,366  68,117,283  68,807,649 

  Operating loss  (682,627)  (65,757,733)  (66,440,360) 

  Nonoperating revenues  686,391  79,886,129  80,572,520 

  Change in net position  3,764  14,128,396  14,132,160 

  Net position, beginning of year  237,349  26,330,801  26,568,150 

  Net position, end of year $ 241,113 $ 40,459,197 $ 40,700,310 

The condensed combining statement of cash flows of Ridefinders and GRTC for the year ended 

June 30, 2022, is as follows: 

  Ridefinders   GRTC   Total  

  Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (22,234) $ (56,832,109) $ (56,854,343) 

  Net cash provided by investing activities  -  46,163  46,163 

  Net cash provided by capital and related  

   financing activities  -  7,089,479  7,089,479 

  Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities  -  67,736,332  67,736,332 

  Increase in cash  (22,234)  18,039,865  18,017,631 

  Cash, beginning of year  207,407  33,355,472  33,562,879 

  Cash, end of year $ 185,173 $ 51,395,337 $ 51,580,510 

Ridefinders has recorded various transactions with the Company for 2022, which are summarized as follows: 

 Payroll and related expenses    $ 509,093 

 Accounts receivable   $ 120,602 

 Accounts payable   $ 40,515 

Effective January 1, 1998, all Ridefinders' employees became GRTC employees.  Ridefinders and GRTC 

entered into an employee lease agreement whereby Ridefinders leases its employees from GRTC. 
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 COVID-19 Uncertainty 

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency because 

of a new strain of coronavirus (the “COVID-19 outbreak”) and the risks to the international community as 

the virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin.  In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 

outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally.  

Additionally, access to grants and contracts from federal and state governments may decrease or may not be 

available depending on appropriations.  The COVID-19 outbreak continues to have a material adverse impact 

on economic and market conditions.  This situation has caused fare collection to be suspended during fiscal 

year 2022 and will continue into fiscal year 2023.  As such, our financial condition and liquidity could be 

negatively impacted for the fiscal years 2023 and beyond. 

The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak has continued to evolve as of the date of this report.  As such, 

there is still uncertainty as to the full magnitude the pandemic will continue to have on the Company’s 

financial condition, liquidity, and future results of operations.  Management continues to activity monitor the 

impact of the global situation on its financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, industry, and 

workforce.  Given the continued impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak, the Company is still unable to estimate 

the continued impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity 

for fiscal year 2023. 

 Deferred Revenue, Central Virginia Transportation Authority (CVTA) 

In 2021, the Central Virginia Transportation Authority (CVTA) was created.  CVTA is responsible for 

administering transportation funding generated from the imposition of an additional regional sales and use 

tax and taxes on the sales of gasoline and diesel.  The funding is to be used for transportation-related purposes 

for the various localities located in Central Virginia.  The Company has received a total of $25,727,458 that 

is to be used for capital and operational needs in future years to be approved by CVTA and as such, is reflected 

as deferred revenue on the statement of net position.  Funding approved by CVTA for expenditure during the 

year ended June 30, 2022, was $20,100,000, of which $737,032 is for capital purposes and is included in 

capital contributions on the statement of net position.  Funding approved by CVTA for specific, nonoperating 

purposes for which those purposes had not yet been met or expended as of June 30, 2022, was $1,173,391 

and is included in restricted net position on the statement of net position.  These restricted purposes consist 

primarily of costs associated with the development of annual Regional Public Transportation Plans and capital 

projects. 
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

Service cost 4,470,182$     3,762,068$     3,409,609$     1,878,738$    2,043,015$    1,948,697$    1,450,042$    2,853,856$     

Interest 3,337,107       3,431,709       3,370,599       4,027,357      3,830,331      3,796,263      4,057,519      4,445,277       

Differences between expected and 

actual experience (41,539,863)    5,400,805       31,264,920     (5,830,131)     2,803,368      7,988,685      (13,996,709)   31,902,783     

Effect of plan changes -                      -                      -                      -                     -                     -                     (24,336,327)   -                      

Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses (515,340)         3,513,631       (2,818,974)      449,165         -                     -                     -                     -                      

Benefit payments, including refunds (5,779,554)      (5,310,675)      (5,051,835)      (5,321,234)     (5,216,184)     (5,056,520)     (4,952,698)     (4,516,684)      

Net change in total pension liability: (40,027,468)    10,797,538     30,174,319     (4,796,105)     3,460,530      8,677,125      (37,778,173)   34,685,232     

Total pension liability, beginning 119,309,604   108,512,066   78,337,747     83,133,852    79,673,322    70,996,197    108,774,370  74,089,138     

Total pension liability, ending (a)  79,282,136$   119,309,604$ 108,512,066$ 78,337,747$  83,133,852$  79,673,322$  70,996,197$  108,774,370$ 

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Contributions, employer 2,779,428$     2,483,999$     2,171,361$     1,822,920$    1,813,544$    1,696,418$    1,632,672$    1,552,764$     

Contributions, employee 1,851,601       1,518,153       1,381,914       1,239,610      1,310,020      1,216,483      1,164,749      1,064,699       

Net investment income 4,716,698       3,758,328       6,249,173       (1,182,755)     4,925,115      1,576,447      (796,759)        1,525,695       

Benefit payments (5,779,554)      (5,310,675)      (4,975,690)      (5,321,234)     (5,216,184)     (5,056,520)     (4,952,698)     (4,516,684)      

Administrative expenses (304,397)         (128,209)         (107,011)         (188,730)        (169,033)        (136,604)        (66,427)          (81,776)           

Other changes -                      15,920            2,003              -                     -                     (268,149)        -                     -                      

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 3,263,776       2,337,516       4,721,750       (3,630,189)     2,663,462      (971,925)        (3,018,463)     (455,302)         

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 38,857,864     36,520,348     31,798,598     35,428,787    32,765,325    33,737,250    36,755,713    37,211,015     

Plan fiduciary net position, ending (b)  42,121,640$   38,857,864$   36,520,348$   31,798,598$  35,428,787$  32,765,325$  33,737,250$  36,755,713$   

Net pension liability, ending (a) - (b)   37,160,496$   80,451,740$   71,991,718$   46,539,149$  47,705,065$  46,907,997$  37,258,947$  72,018,657$   

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total pension liability 53.1% 32.6% 33.7% 40.6% 42.6% 41.1% 47.5% 33.8%

Covered payroll* 19,789,787$   18,616,042$   16,448,830$   16,367,124$  16,514,954$  16,514,954$  15,420,198$  15,018,061$   

Net pension liability as a percentage of 

covered payroll 187.8% 432.2% 437.7% 284.3% 288.9% 284.0% 241.6% 479.5%

*Covered payroll represents the total pensionable payroll for employees covered under the pension plan, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 82.

Note:  Information in this schedule is presented for the year in which information is available. Information will be added each year until a full 10-year trend is presented.

See accompanying notes and Independent Auditor's Report.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution 3,493,861$   3,450,831$   3,589,495$   2,433,113$   2,542,550$   2,347,897$   3,742,841$   3,475,196$   

Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

determined contribution 2,779,428     2,483,999     2,171,361     1,822,920     1,813,544     1,696,418     1,632,672     1,552,764     

Contribution deficiency 714,433$      966,832$      1,418,134$   610,193$      729,006$      651,479$      2,110,169$   1,922,432$   

Employer's covered payroll 19,789,787$ 18,616,042$ 16,448,830$ 16,367,124$ 16,514,954$ 16,514,954$ 15,420,198$ 15,018,061$ 

Contributions as a percentage covered 

payroll 14.04% 13.34% 13.20% 11.14% 10.98% 10.27% 10.59% 10.34%

Note:  Information in this schedule is presented for the year in which information is available.  Information will be added each year until a full 10-year trend is presented.

See accompanying notes and Independent Auditor's Report.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PENSION

Year Ended June 30, 2022

The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the funding valuation as of December 31, 2021:

Valuation date

Measurement date

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Investment rate of return 6.50%

Interest on employee contributions 3.00%

Cost of living adjustments None

Inflation 3.00%

Salary increases 

Termination Rates varying by service as in the table below:

Years of Service Probability

Less than 1 30.00%

Between 1 and 2 20.00%

Between 2 and 4 15.00%

4 or more 4.00%

Incidence of disability Rates are from the 1985 Pension Unisex Disability Table, Class 2.  

Sample rates for active employees varying by age are shown below:

Age Probability

25 0.094%

35 0.219%

45 0.511%

55 1.498%

65 2.718%

Active and Healthy Inactive Mortality Rates from the Pub-2010 General Employee and Retiree

Amount-Weighted Mortality tables, projected with scale MP-2019.

Disabled Mortality Rates from the Pub-2010 General Disabled Annuitants

Amount-Weighted Mortality tables, projected with scale MP-2019.

Retirement Rates for active employees varying by age as in the table below:

Age Probability

55 10.000%

56-59 5.000%

60-61 10.000%

62 70.000%

63 40.000%

64 20.000%

65 100.000%

All future deferred vested participants are assumed to retire at age 62.

The Company provides the assumed dates of retirement for current 

deferred vested participants.

Form of payment All participants are assumed to elect straight life annuities.

Post-retirement Returns of Contributions Refunds of accumulated contributions are approximated with a 

five-year certain annuity.

January 1, 2021

December 31, 2021

12% per year for participants with less than four years of service 

and 4.5% per year for participants with at least four years of service.

See accompanying notes and Independent Auditor's Report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED  

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors of 

   Greater Richmond Transit Company 

Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Greater Richmond 

Transit Company (the “Company”),  as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to 

the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Company’s basic financial statements and have 

issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2022. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Company's internal 

control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.  

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, in internal 

control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a or a combination of deficiencies, material 

misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 

timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 

that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 

governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 

exist that were not identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 

deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weakness 

may exist that have not been identified. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Company and its blend component unit's 

financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 

direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an 

opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 

not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 

and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 

control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 

this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 

Newport News, Virginia 

October 27, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 

FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors of 

   Greater Richmond Transit Company 

Richmond, Virginia 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Greater Richmond Transit Company's (the “Company”) compliance with the types of 

compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could 

have a direct and material effect on each of the Company’s major federal programs for the year ended 

June 30, 2022.  The Company’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results 

section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the Company, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 

programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 

U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 

Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards 

and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 

Compliance section of our report.  

We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 

accordance with relevant ethical requirements related to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each 

major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal documentation of the Company’s compliance 

with the compliance requirements referred to above.  

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 

implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 

laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 

Company’s federal programs. 
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program (Continued) 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 

compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 

on the Company’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 

is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will 

always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 

resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 

compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 

individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user of the report 

on compliance about the Company’s compliance the requirements of each major federal program as a 

whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 

Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

• Identify and assess the risk of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 

test basis, evidence regarding the Company’s compliance with the compliance requirements 

referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 

circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the Company’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 

on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the 

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over 

compliance Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 

control over compliance that we identified during the audit.  

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 

functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 

federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 

deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 

reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 

program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in 

internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 

compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 

weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 

with governance. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance (Continued) 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all 

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies in internal control over compliance.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 

identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses 

as defined above.  However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 

compliance may exist that have not been identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 

control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 

of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 

Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Newport News, Virginia 

October 27, 2022 
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

June 30, 2022

Assistance

Federal Granting Agency/Recipient State Listing Grant Total Awards

Agency/Grant Program Number Number Expended

DIRECT AWARDS
Department of Transportation, Federal Transit 

Administration (FTA):

Federal Transit Cluster:

Federal Transit - Formula Grants 20.507 VA90-X398 22,264$            

20.507 VA90-X535 /

VA2017-022 2,269                

20.507 VA2020-009 1,063,401         

20.507 VA95-X090 103,123            

20.507 VA2021-040 231,250            

20.507 VA18-010 97,820              

20.507 VA2022-007 23,147

COVID-19 Federal Transit - Formula Grants

20.507 VA2020-023 3,220,435         

20.507 VA2022-011 3,295,028         

Total Federal Transit - Formula Grants 8,058,737         

Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program

20.526 VA34-X0002 50,964              

20.526 VA2020-011 28,956              

20.526 VA2021-X034 7,884,669         

Total Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program 7,964,589         

Total Federal Transit Cluster 16,023,326$     

See Independent Auditor’s Report.
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GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY 

 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

June 30, 2022 

 

 

See Independent Auditor’s Report. 
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 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on an accrual basis of 

accounting consistent with the basis of accounting used by Greater Richmond Transit Company.  The 

schedule includes all known federal funds expended by the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022.  The 

information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 

Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 

for Federal Awards.  Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented 

in or used in the presentation of the basic financial statements. 

 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenditures 

are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of 

expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.  Pass-through entity identifying numbers 

are presented where available.  The Company has elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate as 

allowed in the Uniform Guidance. 

 Subrecipient Payments 

None of the expenditures reported on the Schedule were passed through to sub recipients. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

June 30, 2022 
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A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS  

1. The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements. 

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of financial statements were reported in the Independent 

Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters 

Based on the Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements were disclosed. 

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award program were reported in 

the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on Internal 

Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. 

5. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award program expresses an unmodified 

opinion. 

6. The audit disclosed no audit findings related to the major program. 

7. The major program was: 

Name of Program 

 Assistance 

Listing 

Number 

  Federal Transit Cluster: 
 

 

     Federal Transit - Formula Grants  20.507 

     Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program  20.526 

8. The threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs is $750,000. 

9. The Company was determined to be a low-risk auditee. 

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

None noted. 

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT 

None noted. 
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CONTACTS 

Leslie F. Roberts, CPA 

Partner 

Brown, Edwards & Company 

Fountain Plaza One 

701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 

Newport News, VA 23606 

757-316-3220 

lroberts@BEcpas.com 

Danielle A. Nikolaisen, CPA 

Director 

Brown, Edwards & Company 

Fountain Plaza One 

701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 

Newport News, VA 23606 

757-316-3204 

804-518-2370 

dnikolaisen@BEcpas.com 

Christy Turner, CPA 

Manager 

Brown, Edwards & Company 

Fountain Plaza One 

701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 

Newport News, VA 23606 

757-316-3208 

804-518-2373 

cturner@BEcpas.com 

 

144



 

Your Success is Our Focus 
 

701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 • Newport News VA 23606 • 757-873-1033 • Fax 757-873-1106 • www.BEcpas.com 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE 

To the Board of Directors of 

   Greater Richmond Transit Company 

Richmond, Virginia 

We have audited the financial statements of Greater Richmond Transit Company (the “Company”) and 

its blended component unit for the year ended June 30, 2022. Professional standards require that we 

provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, 

Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the 

planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated 

June 28, 2022.  Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information 

related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 

accounting policies used by the Company are described in Note 2 to the financial statements.  No new 

accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2022.  

We noted no transactions entered into by the Company during the year for which there is a lack of 

authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial 

statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management, and are 

based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events, and assumptions about 

future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 

financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 

significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimates affecting the Company’s financial 

statements were: 

• The pension liability and related deferred amount are based on the type of benefits provided at 

the time of each valuation and expected value and projected performance of the related plan 

assets. 

• The useful lives of capital assets is based on historical experience with similar assets and industry 

standards. 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates in determining 

that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 
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Greater Richmond Transit Company 3 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 

statement users.  The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were: 

• Retirement plans (Note 6), accrued uninsured accident claims (Note 7), union contract (Note 11),  

and commitments and contingencies (Note 14) 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 

audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 

audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 

management.  The audit adjustments included in Appendix C were proposed and recorded by the 

Company.  Additionally, management has determined that the effects of the unrecorded misstatements 

included in Appendix B are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements 

taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, reporting, or 

auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction that could be significant to the financial 

statements or the auditors’ report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 

course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 

representation letter included in Appendix A. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 

matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves 

application of an accounting principle to Greater Richmond Transit Company’s financial statements or a 

determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional 

standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the 

relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 

standards, with management each year prior to retention as Greater Richmond Transit Company’s 

auditors.  However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and 

our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
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Greater Richmond Transit Company 4 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the exhibits and the 

Required Supplementary Information as listed in the Table of Contents, which are required supplementary 

information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements.  Our procedures consisted of inquiries 

of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 

consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We did not audit the RSI and 

do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and related notes, which 

accompany the financial statements but is not RSI.  With respect to this supplementary information, we 

made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the 

information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in 

the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the 

information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.  We compared 

and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the 

financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.  

Restriction of Use 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of Greater 

Richmond Transit Company, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 

specified parties. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 

Newport News, Virginia 

October 27, 2022 
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ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS 

NEW GASB PRONOUCEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 

Report to the Board of Directors 

Greater Richmond Transit Company 5 

In this section, we would like to make you aware of certain confirmed and potential changes that are on the horizon 

that may affect your financial reporting and audit.  The effective dates below are updated based on Statement No. 

95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

The GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations in May 2019.  The primary objectives of this 

Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in 

practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt 

obligations, and (3) related note disclosures.  This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing 

definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; 

establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary 

commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving 

required note disclosures. 

 

A conduit debt obligation is defined as a debt instrument having all of the following characteristics: 

• There are at least three parties involved: (1) an issuer, (2) a third-party obligor, and (3) a debt holder or 

a debt trustee. 

• The issuer and the third-party obligor are not within the same financial reporting entity. 

• The debt obligation is not a parity bond of the issuer, nor is it cross-collateralized with other debt of the 

issuer. 

• The third-party obligor or its agent, not the issuer, ultimately receives the proceeds from the debt 

issuance. 

• The third-party obligor, not the issuer, is primarily obligated for the payment of all amounts associated 

with the debt obligation (debt service payments). 

 

All conduit debt obligations involve the issuer making a limited commitment.  Some issuers extend additional 

commitments or voluntary commitments to support debt service in the event the third party is, or will be, unable to 

do so. 

 

An issuer should not recognize a conduit debt obligation as a liability.  However, an issuer should recognize a 

liability associated with an additional commitment or a voluntary commitment to support debt service if certain 

recognition criteria are met.  As long as a conduit debt obligation is outstanding, an issuer that has made an 

additional commitment should evaluate at least annually whether those criteria are met.  An issuer that has made 

only a limited commitment should evaluate whether those criteria are met when an event occurs that causes the 

issuer to reevaluate its willingness or ability to support the obligor’s debt service through a voluntary commitment. 

 

This Statement also addresses arrangements—often characterized as leases—that are associated with conduit debt 

obligations.  In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the proceeds of a conduit debt 

obligation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities.  Payments from third-party obligors are 

intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments.  During those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to 

the capital assets.  Those titles may or may not pass to the obligors at the end of the arrangements. 
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Greater Richmond Transit Company 6 

Issuers should not report those arrangements as leases, nor should they recognize a liability for the related conduit 

debt obligations or a receivable for the payments related to those arrangements.  In addition, the following 

provisions apply: 

• If the title passes to the third-party obligor at the end of the arrangement, an issuer should not recognize 

a capital asset. 

• If the title does not pass to the third-party obligor and the third party has exclusive use of the entire 

capital asset during the arrangement, the issuer should not recognize a capital asset until the 

arrangement ends. 

• If the title does not pass to the third-party obligor and the third party has exclusive use of only portions 

of the capital asset during the arrangement, the issuer, at the inception of the arrangement, should 

recognize the entire capital asset and a deferred inflow of resources.  The deferred inflow of resources 

should be reduced, and an inflow recognized, in a systematic and rational manner over the term of the 

arrangement. 

 

This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations, organized by 

type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’ conduit debt obligations 

and a description of each type of commitment.  Issuers that recognize liabilities related to supporting the debt service 

of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about the amount recognized and how the liabilities 

changed during the reporting period. 

 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021. 

 

The GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 

Arrangements in March 2020.  The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by 

addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs).  As used in this 

Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator (a 

governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate or 

use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time 

in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.  Some PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangement 

(SCA), which the Board defines in this Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects and is compensated 

by fees from third parties; (2) the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve which services the 

operator is required to provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that 

can be charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the service utility 

of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement. 

 

This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements 

(APAs).  As defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government compensates an operator 

for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying 

nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. 
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This Statement requires that PPPs that meet the definition of a lease apply the guidance in Statement 

No. 87, Leases, as amended, if existing assets of the transferor that are not required to be improved by the operator 

as part of the PPP arrangement are the only underlying PPP assets and the PPP does not meet the definition of an 

SCA.  This Statement provides accounting and financial reporting requirements for all other PPPs: those that either 

(1) meet the definition of an SCA or (2) are not within the scope of Statement 87, as amended (as clarified by this 

Statement).  The PPP term is defined as the period during which an operator has a noncancellable right to use an 

underlying PPP asset, plus, if applicable, certain periods if it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant factors, that 

the transferor or the operator either will exercise an option to extend the PPP or will not exercise an option to 

terminate the PPP. 

 

A transferor generally should recognize an underlying PPP asset as an asset in financial statements prepared using 

the economic resources measurement focus.  However, in the case of an underlying PPP asset that is not owned by 

the transferor or is not the underlying asset of an SCA, a transferor should recognize a receivable measured based 

on the operator’s estimated carrying value of the underlying PPP asset as of the expected date of the transfer in 

ownership.  In addition, a transferor should recognize a receivable for installment payments, if any, to be received 

from the operator in relation to the PPP.  Measurement of a receivable for installment payments should be at the 

present value of the payments expected to be received during the PPP term.  A transferor also should recognize a 

deferred inflow of resources for the consideration received or to be received by the transferor as part of the PPP.  

Revenue should be recognized by a transferor in a systematic and rational manner over the PPP term.  This 

Statement requires a transferor to recognize a receivable for installment payments and a deferred inflow of resources 

to account for a PPP in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus.  

Governmental fund revenue would be recognized in a systematic and rational manner over the PPP term. 

 

This Statement also provides specific guidance in financial statements prepared using the economic resources 

measurement focus for a government that is an operator in a PPP that either (1) meets the definition of an SCA or 

(2) is not within the scope of Statement 87, as amended (as clarified in this Statement).  An operator should report 

an intangible right-to-use asset related to an underlying PPP asset that either is owned by the transferor or is the 

underlying asset of an SCA.  Measurement of the right-to-use asset should be the amount of consideration to be 

provided to the transferor, plus any payments made to the transferor at or before the commencement of the PPP 

term, and certain direct costs.  For an underlying PPP asset that is not owned by the transferor and is not the 

underlying asset of an SCA, an operator should recognize a liability measured based on the estimated carrying value 

of the underlying PPP asset as of the expected date of the transfer in ownership.  In addition, an operator should 

recognize a liability for installment payments, if any, to be made to the transferor in relation to the PPP.  

Measurement of a liability for installment payments should be at the present value of the payments expected to be 

made during the PPP term.  An operator also should recognize a deferred outflow of resources for the consideration 

provided or to be provided to the transferor as part of the PPP.  Expense should be recognized by an operator in a 

systematic and rational manner over the PPP term. 

 

This Statement also requires a government to account for PPP and non-PPP components of a PPP as separate 

contracts.  If a PPP involves multiple underlying assets, a transferor and an operator in certain cases should account 

for each underlying PPP asset as a separate PPP.  To allocate the contract price to different components, a transferor 

and an operator should use contract prices for individual components as long as they do not appear to be 

unreasonable based on professional judgment or use professional judgment to determine their best estimate if there 

are no stated prices or if stated prices appear to be unreasonable.  If determining the best estimate is not practicable, 

multiple components in a PPP should be accounted for as a single PPP. 
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This Statement also requires an amendment to a PPP to be considered a PPP modification, unless the operator’s 

right to use the underlying PPP asset decreases, in which case it should be considered a partial or full PPP 

termination.  A PPP termination should be accounted for by a transferor by reducing, as applicable, any receivable 

for installment payments or any receivable related to the transfer of ownership of the underlying PPP asset and by 

reducing the related deferred inflow of resources.  An operator should account for a termination by reducing the 

carrying value of the right-to-use asset and, as applicable, any liability for installment payments or liability to 

transfer ownership of the underlying PPP asset.  A PPP modification that does not qualify as a separate PPP should 

be accounted for by remeasuring PPP assets and liabilities. 

 

An APA that is related to designing, constructing, and financing a nonfinancial asset in which ownership of the 

asset transfers by the end of the contract should be accounted for by a government as a financed purchase of the 

underlying nonfinancial asset.  This Statement requires a government that engaged in an APA that contains multiple 

components to recognize each component as a separate arrangement.  An APA that is related to operating or 

maintaining a nonfinancial asset should be reported by a government as an outflow of resources in the period to 

which payments relate. 

 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.   

 

The GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements in May 2020. 

This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information 

technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments).  This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; 

(2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding 

subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including 

implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA.  To the extent relevant, the 

standards for SBITAs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.  

 

A SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another party’s (a SBITA vendor’s) 

information technology (IT) software, alone or in combination with tangible capital assets (the underlying IT assets), 

as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. 

 

The subscription term includes the period during which a government has a noncancellable right to use the 

underlying IT assets.  The subscription term also includes periods covered by an option to extend (if it is reasonably 

certain that the government or SBITA vendor will exercise that option) or to terminate (if it is reasonably certain 

that the government or SBITA vendor will not exercise that option). 

 

Under this Statement, a government generally should recognize a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible 

asset—and a corresponding subscription liability.  A government should recognize the subscription liability at the 

commencement of the subscription term, —which is when the subscription asset is placed into service.  The 

subscription liability should be initially measured at the present value of subscription payments expected to be made 

during the subscription term.  Future subscription payments should be discounted using the interest rate the SBITA 

vendor charges the government, which may be implicit, or the government’s incremental borrowing rate if the 

interest rate is not readily determinable.  A government should recognize amortization of the discount on the 

subscription liability as an outflow of resources (for example, interest expense) in subsequent financial reporting 

periods. 
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The subscription asset should be initially measured as the sum of (1) the initial subscription liability amount, (2) 

payments made to the SBITA vendor before commencement of the subscription term, and (3) capitalizable 

implementation costs, less any incentives received from the SBITA vendor at or before the commencement of the 

subscription term.  A government should recognize amortization of the subscription asset as an outflow of resources 

over the subscription term. 

 

Activities associated with a SBITA, other than making subscription payments, should be grouped into the following 

three stages, and their costs should be accounted for accordingly: 

 

• Preliminary Project Stage, including activities such as evaluating alternatives, determining needed 

technology, and selecting a SBITA vendor.  Outlays in this stage should be expensed as incurred. 

• Initial Implementation Stage, including all ancillary charges necessary to place the subscription asset 

into service.  Outlays in this stage generally should be capitalized as an addition to the subscription 

asset. 

• Operation and Additional Implementation Stage, including activities such as subsequent 

implementation activities, maintenance, and other activities for a government’s ongoing operations 

related to a SBITA.  Outlays in this stage should be expensed as incurred unless they meet specific 

capitalization criteria.  

 

In classifying certain outlays into the appropriate stage, the nature of the activity should be the determining factor. 

Training costs should be expensed as incurred, regardless of the stage in which they are incurred. 

 

If a SBITA contract contains multiple components, a government should account for each component as a separate 

SBITA or nonsubscription component and allocate the contract price to the different components.  If it is not 

practicable to determine a best estimate for price allocation for some or all components in the contract, a government 

should account for those components as a single SBITA. 

 

This Statement provides an exception for short-term SBITAs.  Short-term SBITAs have a maximum possible term 

under the SBITA contract of 12 months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of 

being exercised.  Subscription payments for short-term SBITAs should be recognized as outflows of resources. 

 

This Statement requires a government to disclose descriptive information about its SBITAs other than short-term 

SBITAs, such as the amount of the subscription asset, accumulated amortization, other payments not included in 

the measurement of a subscription liability, principal and interest requirements for the subscription liability, and 

other essential information. 

 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.   

 

152



ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS 

NEW GASB PRONOUCEMENTS 

June 30, 2022 

Report to the Board of Directors 

Greater Richmond Transit Company 10 

The GASB issued Statement, No. 99, Omnibus 2022 in April 2022.  The objectives of this Statement are to enhance 

comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by 

addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB 

Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees.  The practice issues addressed by 

this Statement are as follows: 

• Classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement No. 53, Accounting 

and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, that do not meet the definition of either an investment 

derivative instrument or a hedging derivative instrument 

• Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended, related to the determination of the 

lease term, classification of a lease as a short-term lease, recognition and measurement of a lease liability 

and a lease asset, and identification of lease incentives 

• Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 

Availability Payment Arrangements, related to (a) the determination of the public-private and public-public 

partnership (PPP) term and (b) recognition and measurement of installment payments and the transfer of 

the underlying PPP asset 

• Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology 

Arrangements, related to the subscription-based information technology arrangement (SBITA) term, 

classification of a SBITA as a short-term SBITA, and recognition and measurement of a subscription 

liability 

• Extension of the period during which the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) is considered an 

appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate 

swap that hedges the interest rate risk of taxable debt 

• Accounting for the distribution of benefits as part of the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 

(SNAP) 

• Disclosures related to nonmonetary transactions 

• Pledges of future revenues when resources are not received by the pledging government 

• Clarification of provisions in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s 

Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, as amended, related to the focus of the 

government-wide financial statements 

• Terminology updates related to certain provisions of Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred 

Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position 

• Terminology used in Statement 53 to refer to resource flows statements. 

The requirements related to extension of the use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP distributions, disclosures of 

nonmonetary transactions, pledges of future revenues by pledging governments, clarification of certain 

provisions in Statement 34, as amended, and terminology updates related to Statement 53 and Statement 63 are 

effective upon issuance.  The requirements related to leases, PPPs, and SBITAs are effective for fiscal years 

beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter.  The requirements related to financial 

guarantees and the classification and reporting of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement 53 are 

effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. 

 

The GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections in June 2022.  The primary 

objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes 

and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for 

making decisions or assessing accountability. 
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This Statement defines accounting changes as changes in accounting principles, changes in accounting estimates, 

and changes to or within the financial reporting entity and describes the transactions or other events that constitute 

those changes.  As part of those descriptions, for (1) certain changes in accounting principles and (2) certain changes 

in accounting estimates that result from a change in measurement methodology, a new principle or methodology 

should be justified on the basis that it is preferable to the principle or methodology used before the change.  That 

preferability should be based on the qualitative characteristics of financial reporting—understandability, reliability, 

relevance, timeliness, consistency, and comparability.  This Statement also addresses corrections of errors in 

previously issued financial statements. 

 

This Statement prescribes the accounting and financial reporting for (1) each type of accounting change and (2) error 

corrections.  This Statement requires that (a) changes in accounting principles and error corrections be reported 

retroactively by restating prior periods, (b) changes to or within the financial reporting entity be reported by 

adjusting beginning balances of the current period, and (c) changes in accounting estimates be reported 

prospectively by recognizing the change in the current period.  The requirements of this Statement for changes in 

accounting principles apply to the implementation of a new pronouncement in absence of specific transition 

provisions in the new pronouncement.  This Statement also requires that the aggregate amount of adjustments to 

and restatements of beginning net position, fund balance, or fund net position, as applicable, be displayed by 

reporting unit in the financial statements. 

 

This Statement requires disclosure in notes to financial statements of descriptive information about accounting 

changes and error corrections, such as their nature.  In addition, information about the quantitative effects on 

beginning balances of each accounting change and error correction should be disclosed by reporting unit in a tabular 

format to reconcile beginning balances as previously reported to beginning balances as restated. 

 

Furthermore, this Statement addresses how information that is affected by a change in accounting principle or error 

correction should be presented in required supplementary information (RSI) and supplementary information (SI).  

For periods that are earlier than those included in the basic financial statements, information presented in RSI or SI 

should be restated for error corrections, if practicable, but not for changes in accounting principles. 

 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for accounting changes and error corrections made in fiscal 

years beginning after June 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter.  Earlier application is encouraged. 

 

The GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences in June 2022.  The objective of this Statement is to 

better meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement 

guidance for compensated absences.  That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement 

guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures.  This Statement requires 

that liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used and (2) leave that has 

been used but not yet paid in cash or settled through noncash means.  A liability should be recognized for leave that 

has not been used if (a) the leave is attributable to services already rendered, (b) the leave accumulates, and (c) the 

leave is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or settled through noncash means.  

Leave is attributable to services already rendered when an employee has performed the services required to earn 

the leave.  Leave that accumulates is carried forward from the reporting period in which it is earned to a future 

reporting period during which it may be used for time off or otherwise paid or settled.  In estimating the leave that 

is more likely than not to be used or otherwise paid or settled, a government should consider relevant factors such 

as employment policies related to compensated absences and historical information about the use or payment of 

compensated absences.  However, leave that is more likely than not to be settled through conversion to defined 

benefit postemployment benefits should not be included in a liability for compensated absences. 
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This Statement requires that a liability for certain types of compensated absences—including parental leave, military 

leave, and jury duty leave—not be recognized until the leave commences.  This Statement also requires that a 

liability for specific types of compensated absences not be recognized until the leave is used. 

 

This Statement also establishes guidance for measuring a liability for leave that has not been used, generally using 

an employee’s pay rate as of the date of the financial statements.  A liability for leave that has been used but not yet 

paid or settled should be measured at the amount of the cash payment or noncash settlement to be made.  Certain 

salary-related payments that are directly and incrementally associated with payments for leave also should be 

included in the measurement of the liabilities. 

 

With respect to financial statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus, this 

Statement requires that expenditures be recognized for the amount that normally would be liquidated with 

expendable available financial resources. 

 

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and all 

reporting periods thereafter.  Earlier application is encouraged. 
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GASB currently has a variety of projects in process.  Some of these projects discussed below. 

 

Conceptual Framework – Recognition.  The project’s objective is to develop recognition criteria for whether 

information should be reported in state and local governmental financial statements and when that information 

should be reported.  This project ultimately will lead to a Concepts Statement on recognition of elements of financial 

statements.  This project is currently in exposure draft re-deliberations period. 

Financial Reporting Model.  The objective of this project is to make improvements to the financial reporting model, 

including Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State 

and Local Governments, and other reporting model-related pronouncements (Statements No. 35, Basic Financial 

Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities, No. 37, Basic 

Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments: Omnibus, 

No. 41, Budgetary Comparison Schedules – Perspective Differences, and No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling 

Legislation, and Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements).  The objective of these improvements would be to enhance the 

effectiveness of the model in providing information that is essential for decision-making and enhance the ability to 

assess a government’s accounting and address certain application issues, based upon the results of the pre-agenda 

research on the financial reporting model.  This project is currently in exposure draft re-deliberations period. 

Revenue and Expense Recognition.  The objective of this project is to develop a comprehensive application model 

for the classification, recognition, and measurement of revenues and expenses.  The purpose for developing a 

comprehensive model is (1) to improve the information regarding revenues and expenses that users need to make 

decisions and assess accountability, (2) to provide guidance regarding exchange and exchange-like transactions that 

have not been specifically addressed, (3) to evaluate revenue and expense recognition in the context of the 

conceptual framework, and (4) to address application issues identified in practice, based upon the results of the pre-

agenda research on revenue for exchange and exchange-like transactions.  This project is currently in the 

preliminary views re-deliberations period. 

Going Concern Uncertainties and Severe Financial Stress.  The objective of this project is to address issues related 

to disclosures regarding going concern uncertainties and severe financial stress.  The project will consider (1) 

improvements to existing guidance for going concern considerations to address diversity in practice and clarify the 

circumstances under which disclosure is appropriate, (2) developing a definition of severe financial stress and 

criteria for identifying when governments should disclose their exposure to severe financial stress, and (3) what 

information about a government’s exposure to severe financial stress is necessary to disclose.  This project is 

currently in the initial deliberations period. 
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Client: GF6

Period End:

Scope:  All known and projected misstatements and/or classification errors over 
            (Scope should generally not exceed 5% of planning materiality). (1)

W/P Type

Reference (3) Current Long-term Current Long-term Revenue C of Sales G & A Selling Other Income (5) Equity

- 

5951 - see 
passed 

CY 
impact 
below

KM

- 
Current Year activity per GASB 87:

5953d 511,248             - (511,248)            

(63,906)              - 

(460,265)            - 511,248             

63,906               63,906               

15,861               15,861               

- 

5220 32,498               - (31,165)              

(68,331)              (68,331)              

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

From Subtotal page(s) - - - - - - - - - - - 

Total (6) - 447,342             32,498               (460,265)            - - (4,425)                - 15,861               11,436               (31,165)              

(7) 11,436               
Cumulative Misstatement Errors (19,729)              

No PY passed adjustments noted.
RideFinders lease standard implementation will not be 
implemented until FY23. However, as the entity is 
consolidated with GRTC, the lease standard applies for 
FY22 and needed to be considered due to the consolidation. 
The total owed over the life of the lease of $583,382 would 
need to be reflected as a lease liability with an offsetting 
right of use asset. BE notes that the overall impact to the 
financials would net to zero and that there would be minimal 
impact to the income statement due to amortization of the 
right of use asset and the portion of the monthly rent expense 
that would be considered interest expense.

Less: Accumulated Amortization

Lease Liability

Amortization Expense

Interest Expense

Reversal of Current Year activity as recorded:

Right of Use Asset

Deferred rent liability

Rent Expense

Greater Richmond Transit Company

June 30, 2022

Planning Materiality:

SUMMARY OF ADJUSTMENTS PASSED AND EVALUATION
OF ALLOWANCE FOR UNDETECTED ERROR

Pretax effect Debit (Credit) (2) of Misstatement and Classification Errors On:

Description

Assets Liabilities Income Statement
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Client: 1600100.000 - Greater Richmond Transit Company

Engagement: 22 AUD - GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

Trial Balance: 3000.1 - Trial Balance Database - GRTC

Workpaper: 3705a - Adjusting Journal Entries Report - GRTC

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4 4642

000-111-99-999-G Accumulated Depreciation 6,164,436.00

000-407-99-005-G Gains on Property Disposals 2,016.00

000-111-01-108-G DHG.014 Buses, Vans and Vehciles  6,159,094.00

000-111-01-110-G DHG.016 Shop and Garage Equipment  7,358.00

Total 6,166,452.00 6,166,452.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 5 4631

199-999-99-999-G Depreciation Expense 4,746,103.00

DHG.032 Audit Account - Amortization Expense 482,662.00

000-111-99-998-G DHG.031 Accumulated Amortization  482,662.00

000-111-99-999-G Accumulated Depreciation  4,746,103.00

Total 5,228,765.00 5,228,765.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6 5750

000-241-99-998-G Net Pension Liablity GASB 68 43,291,244.00

000-101-99-999-G Deferred Outflows GASB 68  9,411,075.00

000-241-99-999-G Deferred Inflows GASB 68  31,632,752.00

199-999-99-002-G GASB 68 Pension Expense  2,247,417.00

Total 43,291,244.00 43,291,244.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 8 5320

000-201-01-067-G City of Richmond Deferred Revenue 491,179.00

000-201-01-072-G A/P Richmond Unearned Oper 30,892.00

000-409-02-082-G Operating contribution - City of Richmond  522,071.00

Total 522,071.00 522,071.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 9 5621

000-202-01-074-G Deferred CVTA Revenue 970,526.00

180-509-02-067-G Consulting Fees 62,774.00

180-509-02-067-G Consulting Fees 103,758.00

000-409-01-124-G Oper contrib CVTA  1,137,032.00

180-509-02-067-G Consulting Fees  26.00

Total 1,137,058.00 1,137,058.00

To book disposal of fixed assets

To record CY depreciation

To adjust pension related amounts.

To recognize local allocation of revenue on old, closed grants

To true-up CVTA activity
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Client: 1600100.000 - Greater Richmond Transit Company

Engagement: 22 AUD - GREATER RICHMOND TRANSIT COMPANY

Period Ending: 6/30/2022

Trial Balance: 3000.3 - Consolidated Trial Balance - GRTC/RideFinders

Workpaper: 3710c - Eliminating Journal Entries Report - GRTC & RideFinders

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

2420

000-201-01-001-00001G A/P Unaudited Vouchers - Month End Reversing 40,515.00

000-102-07-015-G A/R - Ridefinders 40,515.00

Total 40,515.00 40,515.00

GRTC TB

000-440-99-007-G Ridefinders - leased personel 505,519.00

179-501-02-013-R Salary Ridefinders Admin & Gen. 505,519.00

Total 505,519.00 505,519.00

Total Eliminating Journal Entries 546,034.00 546,034.00

Total All Journal Entries 546,034.00 546,034.00

Eliminating Journal Entries

Eliminating Journal Entries JE # 1

To eliminate GRTC/Ridefinders intercompany balances

Eliminating Journal Entries JE # 2

To eliminate leased personnel revenues and expenses
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES  

To the Board of Directors 
Greater Richmond Transit Company 
Richmond, Virginia 
 
 
We have performed the procedure enumerated below on the National Transit Database Financial Data of 
the Greater Richmond Transit Company (the “Company”) for the year ended June 30, 2022.  The 
Company’s management is responsible for the National Transit Database Financial Data. 

The Company has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedure performed is appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of testing that the accounting system from which the National Transit Database 
Financial Data was derived is other than the accounting system prescribed by the Uniform System of 
Accounts but uses the accrual basis of accounting and is directly translated, using a clear trail, to the 
accounting treatment and categories specified by the Uniform System of Accounts.  Additionally, the 
Federal Transit Administration has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are 
appropriate for their purposes.  This report may not be suitable for any other purpose.  The procedure 
performed may not address all items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all 
users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedure performed 
is appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedure and associated findings are as follows:  

Procedure: Reconcile financial data in the following applicable forms reported in the National Transit 
Database Financial Data report to the audited trial balance of the Company. 

Applicable Forms: 

1. Sources of Funds - Funds Expended & Funds Earned (Form F-10) 

Findings:  No exceptions were noted. 

2. Uses of Capital (Form F-20) 

Findings:  No exceptions were noted. 

3. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - Overall 

Findings:  No exceptions were noted. 

4. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - DR PT 

Findings:  No exceptions were noted. 
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5. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - MB DO 

Findings:  No exceptions were noted.  

6. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - RB DO 

Findings:  No exceptions were noted. 

7. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - MB PT 

Findings:  No exceptions were noted. 

8. Operating Expenses (Form F-30) - VP PT 

Findings:  No exceptions were noted. 

9. Operating Expenses Summary (Form F-40) 

Findings:  No exceptions were noted. 

10. Financial Statement (Form F-60) 

Findings:  No exceptions were noted. 

11. Federal Funding Allocation Statistics (Forms FFA-10)  

Findings:  According to management, the Form FFA-10 was unable to be provided to us because 
the Form was not yet available to be submitted within the National Transit Database.  As such, 
no procedure was performed.  

We were engaged by the Company to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants.  We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, 
the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the National 
Transit Database Financial Data. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion.  Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been 
reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Greater Richmond Transit Company and 
the Federal Transit Administration and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
those specified parties.  

 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Newport News, Virginia 
October 31, 2022 
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